AN

W




Characteristics of The Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”)
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited
to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance
is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities
traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any
part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Hong
Kong Jewellery Holding Limited (the “Company”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars
given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “"GEM Listing Rules”) for
the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company.
The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm
that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive, there are no other
matters the omission of which would make any statement
herein or this report misleading.
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RESULTS

Revenue (Note)

Profit/(Loss) before income
tax
Income tax (expense)/credit

Profit/(Loss) for the year

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets
Total liabilities

Total equity

Note: In order to conform with current year’'s presentation, revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2012 have been reclassified

accordingly.

£

LONCIES)

#

FER(Ax)/ H%

FRETN/ (BR)

BRFASHLA
w7/ (B1R)

2009
—ETNE
HK$'000
FHET

172,545

1,737
(38)

1,699

159,194
(68,114)

101,080

2010
—E-TF
HK$'000
AT

280,676

4,658
1,281

5,939

186,799
(79,161)

107,638

2011
“F—F
HK$'000
TAT

512,900

2,590
(219)

2,371

193,798
(77,428)

116,370

2012
—E-—fF
HK$'000
FAT

350,880

36,462
(1,361)

35,101

391,238
(239,280)

151,958

2013
—E-=F
HK$'000
THET

579,380

(14,723)
(1,447)

(16,170)

358,012
(165,745)

192,267
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Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Hong Kong
Jewellery Holding Limited (the “Company”), it is my pleasure
to present the 2013 Annual Report of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2013.

Year 2013 was a year of aggressive progress for the Group.
Under the leadership of the new Board, we made sufficient
preparations for continuous reform and advancement. Despite
H.K. JEWELRY has not only
consolidated its foundation, but also gained the opportunities
for long-term development.

fierce market competition,

In general, the situation of the China jewellery market was
pretty good in the year. As the volatility of gold prices was
somehow offset by the gold-buying rush of the Mainland China
investors, the sales of jewellery still recorded a substantial
year-on-year increase. Capturing the golden opportunity and
leveraging on our Hong Kong base, the Group proactively
extended its retail outlet coverage in China, established a series
of systematic and scientific retail networks in the Northeast
China, North China, East China and South China, achieved
extraordinary sales results, secured an increasingly popular
brand name and smoothly fulfilled the development plan.
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The mission of jewellery industry is to discover, create and
promote beauty. With an ancient and profound jewellery
culture, China has never held and will never hold back its desire
and pursuit for jewellery. | believe that, with such rigid demand
for jewellery, the market still enjoys a favourable prospect
and robust growth potential. We are positioned to seize this
opportunity and make greater breakthrough. Looking ahead,
the Group will step up its investment effort and accelerate
development pace through further asset expansion and resource
integration, so as to offer convenient and comprehensive
services for domestic and overseas customers in a centralised,
unified and standardised manner. Committed to the preservation
and inheritance of the beauty of the jewellery industry,
H.K. JEWELRY aims to forge itself into a world-class
jewellery enterprise and an image brand of China to the world.

Dear shareholders and fellow colleagues, while we all have our
own dreams towards 2014, the healthy and rapid development
of the Group will be our common expectation and target. Let's
work together to develop our glamorous jewellery business and
pursue excellence.

Li Xia
Chairman

Hong Kong
17 March 2014
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For the year of 2013, the Group’s loss attributable to the
owners of the Company was HK$14,091,000, as compared with
a profit of HK$34,158,000 in the same period of 2012. The loss
in 2013 was mainly attributable to the significant increase in
promotion and development expenses incurred by the Group
for its ambitious expansion in the jewellery business. The profit
recorded in 2012 was mainly due to the gain on disposal of
properties of HK$30,870,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group recorded
a turnover of HK$579,380,000, representing an increase by
65% compared with a turnover of HK$350,880,000 in 2012.

The sales of gold and jewellery products and franchise
income contributed turnover of HK$140,135,000 during the
year. The sales of enterprise software products dropped by
16% to HK$131,155,000 (2012: HK$155,218,000). Revenue
on systems integration business significantly increased
by 81% to HK$263,364,000 (2012: HK$145,676,000) and
revenue on professional services business decreased by 8%
to HK$41,155,000 (2012: HK$44,770,000). The ASP business
increased by 4% to HK$3,571,000 (2012: HK$3,441,000).

In 2013, the Group achieved rapid expansion in its jewellery
business.

The Group made efforts to upgrade the image of @& BIKRE
CGRYNAMR AT, a China operation centre based in Shenzhen,

HE-_ZT—=F A AHEEABRGEAEEZE
B/514,091,0008 7L M_Z——FREEEHN A
34,158,000 7T - —E—=F 7 FETEHNK
CERGERREEGMEEACHERBEREEA
ANEEFFEH - —E——F 2G5 MAEBZER
& Y3 4£%1530,870,00078 7T 2 W2 o

BHE-_ZT—=F+-A=+—HILEE  x&H
152 %5 5579,380,0008 7 M-EBE——F 7
350,880,000/ 7T = F65% °

RERN AEEESHBEERNE RFFFMBEK
AH) & 258 5140,135,0008 70 » ¥ E W
B S &5 N K16%£131,155,000/8 T( — & —
—4F 1 155,218,000/ 7T ) ° RAEMEFHAK
g = 7+81% %263,364,000/ jt( — & — — 4 :
145,676,000/ 7T ) M F % AR 745 3 75 W AUR 28 %
41,155,000/ 7o( — & — — 4 : 44,770,000/
TL) o JER AR TS A FE  E S U AE 4% =
3,571,000/ 7L (—F——4 : 3,441,000/ 7T) °

ZE-ZF RASEERETELRERD
—fF

AEBREEERE(RIDARQA  —HR
KRR EEER L - EITERETT - LA




ERREERAR AT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER W& DM

and expanded its brand showroom. As at 31 December 2013, it
successfully opened nearly 60 exclusive stores under the brand
H-< H.K. JEWELRY in domestic first-tier and second-tier cities
including Shenzhen, Beijing, Hangzhou, Suzhou, Wuxi, Harbin,
Tianjin and Hefei, smoothly fulfilling its development plan.
H< H.K. JEWELRY soon became a popular brand highly
recognised by high-end malls and consumers in Mainland China.

On product portfolio, H< H.K. JEWELRY focuses on gold,
platinum, karat gold jewellery and diamond ornaments with its
product family covering emerald, ruby and sapphire, pearl and
other varieties according to regional consumer demand, which
is designed to cater for the needs of different consumer groups
at different levels.

On our IT Products and Services business, the sales of
enterprise software products and professional services
decreased slightly due to the slow economy growth in Mainland
China. Coupled with the rapidly rising costs of running business
in Mainland China, particular in the salary and employee
benefit costs, we saw a major hit on our profit margin in these
areas. Despite we had a higher sales volume in our systems
integration business, the very thin margin of hardware trading
could not compensate the loss of profit in these other areas.
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As at 31 December 2013, the Group was in a strong financial
position with bank balances and cash of HK$71,355,000 (2012:
HK$87,763,000).

As at 31 December 2013, the Group invested in the equity
securities listed in Hong Kong of HK$26,602,000 at fair value
(2012: HK$5,151,000).

As at 31 December 2013, the value of the unlisted private equity
fund which the Group held was zero (2012: US$326,000) because
the unlisted private equity fund was put into liquidation in late
2013, the impairment loss of HK$2,543,000 (2012: HK$123,000)
was provided during the year.

The Group monitors its capital structure using the gearing ratio
which is net debt divided by total equity. For this purpose, the
Group defines net debt as debt, which comprises long-term and
short-term borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents. Total
equity comprises equity attributable to owners of the Company
and non-controlling interests stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position. During 2013, the Group's strategy remains
unchanged from 2012, which is to maintain the gearing ratio of
not more than 20% in order to support its business. The gearing
ratio as at 31 December 2013 was zero (2012: 16%).
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On 18 March 2013, the company entered into a placing
agreement with the placing agent in respect of the placing of
up to a maximum of 203,000,000 new shares at a placing price
of HK$0.34 per share to raise additional general working capital
for future business development. On 3 April 2013, the placing
was completed and 173,410,000 new shares were placed by
the placing agent to not less than six independent placees at a
placing price of HK$0.34 per share resulting in raising proceeds,
before expenses, of approximately HK$58,959,000. The related
transaction costs amounting to HK$736,000 have been recorded
in the share premium account. The net proceeds of this placing
of approximately HK$58,223,000 were used for the general
working capital of the Group. The Group's outstanding issued
shares were 1,188,460,000 shares after the placing of new
shares of 173,410,000 as at 31 December 2013.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, there was no significant
investment held by the Group.

The Jewellery Products business’'s turnover was
HK$140,135,000 in 2013 (2012: HK$1,775,000). The IT Products
and Services business’'s turnover was HK$439,245,000,
increased by 26% compared with last year (2012:
HK$349,105,000).
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As at 31 December 2013, the number of employees of the
Group was 592 (2012: 525). Remuneration is determined with
reference to market terms and the performance, qualification
and experience of individual employee. Year-end bonus
based on individual performance will be paid to employees as
recognition of and reward for their contributions.

On the IT Products and Services business, 2014 would be even
a more challenging year. The rapid development of so called
“electronic finance” sends companies to race for launching
of mobile finance applications and thus generating a huge
demand on software professionals. This demand in turn jacks
up the overall salary costs as companies are competing for
talents with ever higher salary and better benefits. It would be
difficult for us to grow our business, which depends mostly
on availability of human resources, and to maintain our profit
margin at the same time. Nevertheless, we will manage our
costs very carefully while trying to expand our market coverage
in Mainland China.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Along with the continuous growth of the Mainland China
economy, the passion on jewellery will continue to grow,
especially the gold-buy rush of the Mainland China investors
will continue. Capturing the favourable opportunity, the Group
will continue to optimise its business structure and strengthen
corporate management while reinforcing its marketing efforts,
aiming to secure market share with heightened product quality.
At the same time, the Group will continue to advance its brand
strategy to sharpen its competitiveness edge. On corporate
management, the Group will further improve its internal control
system and management process, clearly define management
responsibilities and strengthen the execution of management
system, so as to uplift corporate management fundamentals
and boost the resistance against risks. The Group is committed
to forging itself into a domestically leading and world-class
jewellery conglomerate with stronghold business supported by
diversified operations and strong international competitiveness.
By virtue of our experience,

passion and dedication, we :-.;".«‘_'“'

seek to establish 60-70 new "
self-operated and franchised
stores in 2014, with an aim
at significant year-on-year
growths both in revenue and net
profit with desirable return to our
shareholders.
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The Company is committed to the establishment of good
corporate governance practices and procedures. The
Directors believe that sound and reasonable corporate
governance practices are essential for the growth of
the Company and for safeguarding the shareholders’
interests and the Company's assets.

The Company’'s code of corporate governance practices
was adopted with reference to the code provisions
of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices ("CG
Code”) and Corporate Governance Report (“CG Report”)
contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules.

There is no deviation from the code provisions in the CG
Code as at 31 December 2013.

The Board is responsible for overseeing the strategic
directions, management, business and financial
performance of the Group.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day operational
responsibilities of the Group’s business to the executive
management team under the leadership of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer and various Board committees.

The Board currently comprises the following members:

Executive Directors:

Li Xia

Lin Di

Chen Yin

Yip Tin Hung

Zee Chan Mei Chu, Peggy (Resigned on 30 April 2013)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Lam Tin Faat

Lu Haina

Fu Ping Man
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The Board meets at least four times a year to review

financial and operating performance and discuss the
Group's direction and strategy.

Details of the attendance of the Board of Directors are
as follows:

19 Mar 2013

—E-=F

=At+hA

Li Xia FE 4
Lin Di i 4
Chen Yin PR =5 v
Yip Tin Hung TR 4
Lam Tin Faat MR EE v
Lu Haina Gzt 4
Fu Ping Man (37558 v
Zee Chan Mei Chu, Peggy* S ES 4

# Resigned on 30 April 2013

Directors are given notice of regular Board meetings of
at least 14 days in advance. The Directors will receive
details of agenda with comprehensive reports on the
management'’s strategic plans, updates by business unit
heads on their lines of business, financial objectives,
plans and actions at least 3 days before a Board meeting.

All Directors have access to the Company Secretary
who is responsible for ensuring that Board procedures
are complied with and advises the Board on corporate
governance and compliance matters.

The Executive Directors meet every two weeks to
review company business pipeline, receivables, and
business unit performance. Senior Management meets
with Business Unit Management every week to review
project status, and business unit issues.

The Company has undertaken several meetings, first
with Senior Management, second with the audit
committee, and subsequently with the Board, to discuss
and review the Group's practice on corporate governance
and make specific checks on the Group's compliance
via a compliance matrix in accordance to the criteria set
forth by the GEM Listing Rule.
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All the directors do not have any financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationship with each
other.

The Company confirmed that annual confirmations
of independence were received from each of the
Company’'s Independent Non-executive Directors
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and all
Independent Non-executive Directors are considered to
be independent.

Directors must keep abreast of their collective
responsibilities. Every new appointed director should
receive induction and subsequent briefing and
professional development.

A training workshop regarding Corporate Governance
Code, Connected Transactions and Disclosure of Price
Sensitive Information was organised for all directors in
November 2013.

The Company continuously updates the Directors on the
latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance
and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices.

The Company has received records of the training of all
directors and the code provision of A.6.5 of GEM Listing
Rules is fully complied.

Appropriate liability insurance, the coverage of which
is reviewed annually, has been arranged to indemnify
the Directors’ risk exposure arising out of corporate
activities.
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Pursuant to the Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code,
the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual, so that there is a clear division of
responsibilities between the management of the Board
and the day-to-day management of the Company's
business to ensure a balance of power and authority.

The Chairman of the Board, Ms. Li Xia provides
leadership for the Board to ensure that the Board
functions properly in compliance with good corporate
governance practices; and the Chief Executive Officer,
Mr. Lin Di takes the lead in the Company’s operations
and business development.

The Audit Committee was established on 11 August
2000. The Audit Committee’s principal duties are to
review and supervise the financial reporting process and
internal control procedures of the Group.

The revised terms of reference of Audit Committee
in accordance with the Code Provision C.3.3 of
Amendments to the CG Code of the GEM Listing Rules
was adopted on the Board Meeting held on 21 March
2012.

The member of Audit Committee comprised of Mr. Lam
Tin Faat, Ms. Lu Haina and Mr. Fu Ping Man, all of whom
are Independent Non-executive Directors. Mr. Lam Tin
Faat is the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee meets four times a year to review
with senior management and at least twice a year with
the Company’s auditors for the Company's audit findings,
accounting policies and standards, changes of accounting
rules (if any), compliance with listing rules, internal and
audit control, and budget and cash flow forecast.

The Group's unaudited quarterly and interim results
and audited annual results during the year ended 31
December 2013 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee, who is of the opinion that such statements
comply with the applicable accounting standards and that
adequate disclosures have been made.
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Details of the attendance of members at Audit
Committee meeting are as follows:

19 Mar 2013

—E-=F

=ZAthA

Lam Tin Faat MR 2 4
Lu Haina RSB v/
Fu Ping Man (E3759°¢ v

The Remuneration Committee was established on 10
May 2005. The Remuneration Committee is to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for all directors and senior management’s
remuneration.

The revised terms of reference of Remuneration
Committee in accordance with the Code Provision B.1.2
of Amendments to the CG Code of the GEM Listing
Rules was adopted on the Board Meeting held on 21
March 2012.

The members of Remuneration Committee, comprised
of Mr. Lam Tin Faat and Mr. Fu Ping Man, both are
Independent Non-executive Directors, and Ms. Li Xia
who is Executive Director, Mr. Lam Tin Faat is the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee should hold at least one
regular meeting in a year. During the year under review,
the members of Remuneration Committee, Mr. Lam
Tin Faat, Ms. Li Xia and Mr. Fu Ping Man attended the
Remuneration Committee Meeting on 11 November
2013.
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The Nomination Committee was established on 21 March
2012. The Nomination Committee is to assist Board of
Directors of the Company to deal with matters in relation
to appointment of members of the Board.

The written terms of reference of Nomination Committee
in accordance with the Code Provision A.5.2 of
Amendments to the CG Code of the GEM Listing Rules
was adopted on the Board Meeting held on 21 March
2012.

The members of Nomination Committee, comprised
of Mr. Lam Tin Faat and Mr. Fu Ping Man, both are
Independent Non-executive Directors, and Ms. Li Xia
who is Executive Director, Mr. Lam Tin Faat is the
Chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee should hold at least one
regular meeting in a year. During the year under review,
the members of Nomination Committee, Mr. Lam Tin
Faat, Ms. Li Xia and Mr. Fu Ping Man attended the
Nomination Committee Meeting on 11 November 2013.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of
the Company Secretary. The Company Secretary is Dr.
Tang Lai Wah, who is responsible for facilitating the
Board process, as well as communications between
Board members and the management, and advising the
Board and its committees on all governance matters. The
biographical details of Dr. Tang is set out on page 36 of
this annual report.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by directors on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings set out
in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having
made specific enquiry of all directors, all directors of the
Company have complied with the required standard of
dealings and the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors adopted by the Company
throughout the twelve months ended 31 December
2013.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013, the remuneration
for the provision of audit and non-audit services by the

auditors to the Group is as follows:

Fees breakdown by accounting firms & HARE:HEI{TEISD

Grant Thornton* G =R ES
Annual audit services FEZERS
Non-audit services IEZH RS

Other professional CPA firms

Hih BEHE AT

Annual audit services FEZERSE
Total 5T
* Grant Thornton (including Grant Thornton and Grant

Thornton Hong Kong Limited), hereinafter referred to as
“Grant Thornton”).

The Board recognises that a sound and effective internal
control system will contribute to the effectiveness
and efficiency of operations, the reliability of financial
reporting and the Group's compliance with applicable
laws and regulations.

Management has established the Group's Internal
Control Policies and Guidance for monitoring the internal
control system.

The Board has delegated to management the
implementation of such systems of internal controls as
well as the review of relevant financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management procedures.

BE-T-=4+-A=t—ALEE.
A2 R 2 D R R B B R S
BERBOMSIT -

2013 2012
—_E—= —E——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
1,010 836

10 530

1,020 1,366

190 152

1,210 1,518

* i A FHA( BIE R Eat D F
BH (R EBER) REF(EE) et
BN EBHERAA]) - LT EAEE
ERETEAT

ExemR —BAR2ERARNAIEE
B E e = 2 B RBE MR R - SR Nt %
WEOASENE  EAKEEEBETRT
BB R AR

EEECHERANBERBIENEAE
Z NEBESFE R &Ta%l

%%AF’%%E@T&”E%%W*B%% 1
ZHITITE YR BEMY - SEEE
REHMEAREEZERF



In addition, in the year under review the Group engaged
RSM Nelson Wheeler Consulting Limited (“RSM"”) to
review the major operational control of ©&BHRE CEYI)
AR/AF on a project basis. RSM provides an independent
review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal
control system on the captioned operational control. The
internal control review report is presented to the Board.
The management is responsible for ensuring appropriate
actions are taken to rectify any control deficiencies
highlighted in the internal control review report.

Based on the assessment and review made by the Board
and RSM on the effectiveness of the internal control
system, the Audit Committee is satisfied that:

o The internal controls and accounting systems of
the Group are designed to provide reasonable
assurance that material assets are protected,
business risks attributable to the Group are
identified and monitored, material transactions
are executed in accordance with management'’s
authorisation and the accounts are reliable for
publication; and

° There is an ongoing process in place for
identifying, evaluating and managing the significant
risks faced by the Group.

The rights of shareholders and the procedure for
demanding a poll on resolutions at general meetings
are contained in the Company’'s Bye-laws. Pursuant to
the GEM Listing Rules, and vote of shareholders at a
general meeting must be taken by poll. In addition, an
announcement on the poll vote results will be made by
the Company following the relevant general meeting.

The general meetings of the Company provide an
opportunity for communication between the shareholders
and the Board.

The Company also communicates with its shareholders
through annual reports, interim reports, quarterly reports,
announcements and circulars issued by the Company
from time to time.
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The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report and
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2013.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note
16 to the financial statements.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013
and the state of affairs of the Group and the Company at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 40 to 148.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past five years is set out on page 5 of the annual
report.

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
are set out in note 33 to the financial statements.

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and
the Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 47 and note 34 to the
financial statements respectively.

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

EEeMAREHE_ZT—=F+-_A=+—H
LEEZESEREREECHBHEE -

ARAZEBEHRRELR - TEHBARZ
EEEHRRHHREMTI6 -

AEEHE T =F+_A=+—HILFEZ
EERAREBEERAQNRR il B 82 BB
HNFABEETF 1488 2 B EK -

EFETRERERS -

AEERBELFIREAREEABMEHNF
WESH -

ARBEA 2 B FITHN I RAM £33

FAXREERARRFRBZEBFBORIHNE
ATE 2R AR BRI NI ERRME34 -

REEME  WMENREZE
RKHFE15 -

~HBEE B

ARBZARAASERELZEODEEHEELE
BRZHBE  BMSARRARLAIMRRERBBRERER
2REFK -



During the year ended 31 December 2013, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any
of the Company’s listed securities.

The directors who held office during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Li Xia (Chairman)

Lin Di (Chief Executive Officer)

Chen Yin

Yip Tin Hung

Zee Chan Mei Chu, Peggy (Resigned on 30 Apr 2013)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Lam Tin Faat

Lu Haina

Fu Ping Man

In accordance with the Company's Bye-laws, the Directors of
the Company shall be subject to retirement by rotation at each
annual general meeting. Ms. Li Xia, Mr. Lin Di and Mr. Chen
Yin, will retire from office and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The biographical details of Directors and Senior Management
are set out on pages 33 to 37.

The Company entered into a service contract with Ms. Zee Chan
Mei Chu, Peggy for a term of three years which commenced
on 1 March 2000. The service contracts were renewed for
further periods from 1 March 2003 to 31 December 2003, from
1 January 2004 to 31 December 2013 on a yearly basis. The
service contracts will continue thereafter until terminated by
either party giving not less than six months’ written notice. This
service contract was early terminated on 30 April 2013.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has an
unexpired service contract which is not determinable by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

At 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company and their
associates in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations, as recorded in
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ"), or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Rule 5.46
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "GEM Listing Rules”), were as follows:
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Number of ordinary shares held

BREBREE

Beneficial Held
Name of Director owner by family

EEfA BHEERA GES R

Li Xia 8 - -

Lin Di e - -

Held by
controlled
corporation

MEEQFAESR

422,909,967
(Note 1)
(Hst1)

148,910,166
(Note 2)
(Mizz2)

Total

T

422,909,967

148,910,166

Percentage of
the issued
share capital of
the Company
ERAT BT
BRAT 2

35.58%

12.53%
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

ESEHRE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES

AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
of the Company (Continued)

Notes:

(1) These shares were held by Sino Eminent Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands which is held as to
72.60% by Ms. Li Xia through Ocean Expert Investments
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

(2) These shares were held by Confluence Holdings Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands which is
wholly-owned by Mr. Lin Di.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor their
associates had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as at 31 December 2013.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 December 2013, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO shows that the following shareholders had notified the
Company of relevant interests and short positions in the issued
share capital of the Company.
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Name of shareholder
RREE

Sino Eminent Limited
Ocean Expert Investments Limited
Li Xia
Confluence Holdings Limited
Lin Di
Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Company Limited
(as trustee of The Li Ka-Shing Unity Trust)
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustcorp Limited
(as trustee of another discretionary trust)
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Corporation Limited

ERARDA

BRREBRAR

& RIER AR AR

i

RIEX(KE)BR AR

Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Company Limited
(fEAThe Li Ka-Shing Unity TrustZ (55EA)

Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustcorp Limited
(ERZ—2REFEZETA)

Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Corporation Limited

(as trustee of The Li Ka-Shing Unity (#E&The Li Ka-Shing Unity
Discretionary Trust) Discretionary TrustZ {57 A)
Li Ka-shing FRA
Alps Mountain Agent Limited Alps Mountain Agent Limited
iBusiness Corporation Limited EREEERAR
Notes: BtaE -
(1) These shares have been disclosed as Directors’ interests held (1)
by controlled corporation in the paragraph headed “Directors’
and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in the
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company”.
(2) Mr. Li Ka-shing is the settlor of each of The Li Ka-Shing Unity  (2)

Discretionary Trust (“DT1”) and another discretionary trust
(“"DT2”). Each of Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Corporation Limited
(“TDT1"”, which is the trustee of DT1) and Li Ka-Shing Unity
Trustcorp Limited (“TDT2"”, which is the trustee of DT2) holds
units in The Li Ka-Shing Unity Trust (“UT1”) but is not entitled
to any interest or share in any particular property comprising the
trust assets of the said unit trust. The discretionary beneficiaries
of each of DT1 and DT2 are, inter alia, Mr. Li Tzar Kuoi, Victor,
his wife and children and Mr. Li Tzar Kai, Richard. Li Ka-
Shing Unity Trustee Company Limited (“TUT1”) as trustee of
UTT1 together with certain companies which TUTT1 as trustee
of UTT is entitled to exercise or control the exercise of one-
third or more of the voting power at their general meetings
hold more than one-third of the issued share capital of Cheung
Kong (Holdings) Limited (“CKH"). CKH is entitled to exercise or
control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at
the general meetings of Alps Mountain Agent Limited (“Alps”)
and iBusiness Corporation Limited (“iBusiness”).

Percentage

Number of of the issued

issued ordinary  share capital of

Notes shares held the Company
BHERMT ERARBEST

et ZEREA BAESL
1 422,909,967 35.58%

1 422,909,967 35.58%

1 422,909,967 35.58%

1 148,910,166 12.53%

| 148,910,166 12.53%
2 143,233,151 12.05%
2 143,233,151 12.05%
2 143,233,151 12.05%
2 143,233,151 12.05%
2 143,233,151 12.05%
2 71,969,151 6.06%
2 67,264,000 5.66%
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Notes: (Continued)

The entire issued share capital of each of TUT1, TDT1 and
TDT2 are owned by Li Ka-Shing Unity Holdings Limited (”Unity
Holdco”). Mr. Li Ka-shing and Mr. Li Tzar Kuoi, Victor are
respectively interested in one-third and two-third of the entire
issued share capital of Unity Holdco. TUTT1 is only interested in
the shares of CKH by reason only of its obligation and power to
hold interests in those shares in its ordinary course of business
as trustee and, when performing its functions as trustee,
exercises its power to hold interests in the shares of CKH
independently without any reference to Unity Holdco or any of
Mr. Li Ka-shing and Mr. Li Tzar Kuoi, Victor as a holder of the
shares of Unity Holdco as aforesaid.

By virtue of the SFO, each of Mr. Li Ka-shing, being the settlor
and may being regarded as a founder of each of DT1 and DT2
for the purpose of the SFO, TUT1, TDT1, TDT2 and CKH is
deemed to be interested in the 143,233,151 shares of the
Company of which 71,969,151 shares are held by Alps and
67,264,000 shares are held by iBusiness.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of
any other interests or short positions in the issued share capital
of the Company at 31 December 2013.

During the year, the aggregate turnover attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers was approximately 60.08% of
the Group’s total turnover and the Group’s largest customer
accounted for approximately 27.10% of the Group’s turnover.

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to the
Group's five largest suppliers was approximately 67.76% of
the Group's total purchases and the Group’s largest supplier
accounted for approximately 31.94% of the Group's total
purchases.

At no time during the year, the Directors, their associates or
any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest
in these major suppliers or customers.
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Other than as disclosed above, at no time during the year was
the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

The Group’s continuing connected transactions were mainly
made with the companies in which directors of the Company
have interests in respect of the sales of gold and jewellery
H.K. JEWELRY and purchase of showcases for the brand
H.K. JEWELRY, which constituted continuing connected
transactions (the “Continuing Connected Transactions”) under
the GEM Listing Rules.

On 18 September 2013, @& BB OFYI)ER AR, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the Master
Agreement |, the Master Agreement Il, the Master Agreement
Il and Master Agreement IV with Hangzhou Baidi Jewellery
Company Limited* (“Baidi Jewellery”), Shenzhen City Zhong
Chuang Union Investment Company Limited* (“Zhong
Chuang”), Shenzhen Didi Jewellery Packaging Company
Limited* (“Didi Packaging”) and Hangzhou Didi Commercial
Showcases Company Limited* (“Didi Showcases”) respectively.

*  For identification purposes only
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I

(1)

(IV)

Name of counterparties

X%HER

Hangzhou Baidi Jewellery Company
Limited (“Baidi Jewellery”) (Note 2)

MM EEREAR AR ([ A@kE ) (f:E2)

Shenzhen City Zhong Chuang Union
Investment Company Limited
("Zhong Chuang”) (Note 1)

AT EERERRAT
(Tl (B EET)

Shenzhen Didi Jewellery Packaging
Company Limited (“Didi Packaging”)
(Note 2)

336k 3 5
(FEE2)

BRAERAR(Naask))

Hangzhou Didi Commercial Showcases
Company Limited ("Didi Showcases”)
(Note 2)

mNEaEREERAR([HaRA])
(FrzE2)

Nature of
transactions

REME

Sales of gold and
jewellery products

HERELUEEM

Sales of gold and

jewellery products
HEFZSUHEER

Purchase of packaging
materials for the
brand

H.K. JEWELRY

BEHEEKERE

ZEEME

Purchase of showcases

for the brand
H.K. JEWELRY

BE EREREmE
ZEE

(a) Date of Agreement
(b) Terms

(a) 153 H A

(b) PR

(a) 18 September 2013
(b) 18 September 2013 -
31 December 2015
@ ZE—=FNATNH
b) ZE—=FNA+NH
E_T-RF
+=ZA=+—H
(a) 18 September 2013
(b) 18 September 2013 -
31 December 2015
(@) ZE—=FAA+N\H
b) ZE—=FhnA+N\H
E-FT—0F
+-A=+—-8

(a) 18 September 2013
(b) 18 September 2013 -
31 December 2015
(@) ZE—=FAA+N\H
b) ZE—=FNnA+N\H
EZ-T-0F
+-A=+—-8

(a) 18 September 2013
(b) 18 September 2013 -
31 December 2015
@ ZE—=FNAT/NH
b) ZE—=FLA+/\H
E-Z-AF
+-A=+-H

2013

—B-=F

HK$000
T

67,518

3,573

1,266

3,653

2012

—E-CF

HK$'000
T

2,200

234

782



Notes:

(1) Zhong Chuang is owned as to 81% by the brother of Ms. Li Xia.
Accordingly, Zhong Chuang is an associate of Ms. Li Xia, and
hence a connected person of the Company under Chapter 20 of
the GEM Listing Rules, and

2) each of Baidi Jewellery, Didi Packaging and Didi Showcases is
owned as to 90%, 65% and 80% by Hangzhou Didi Investment
Joint Stock Company Limited respectively, which in turn is
owned as to 10% and 90% by Mr. Lin Di and his father,
respectively. Therefore, each of Baidi Jewellery, Didi Packaging
and Didi Showcases is an associate of Mr. Lin Di, and hence
a connected person of the Company under Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

Therefore, transactions under Master Agreement (I) to (IV)
above constitute Continuing Connected Transactions of this
Company under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The above Continuing Connected Transactions are subject
to various annual cap amounts disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 18 September 2013 and the Company's
circular dated 25 October 2013. Capitalised terms used in this
section shall have the same meanings as those defined in the
above announcement and circular unless specified otherwise.

All the Continuing Connected Transactions above have been
reviewed by the Company’'s Independent Non-executive
Directors who have confirmed that: (i) the terms and conditions
of each of the Continuing Connected Transactions are on
normal commercial terms that are fair and reasonable so
far as the independent shareholders are concerned; (ii) the
respective proposed annual caps for the Continuing Connected
Transactions for the three years ending 31 December 2015 are
fair and reasonable so far as the independent shareholders are
concerned; and (iii) the Continuing Connected Transactions are
conducted in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group and in the interest of the Company and the shareholders
as a whole.
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The Company’s auditors were engaged to report on the Group’s
Continuing Connected Transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The auditors have issued an
unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions in
respect of the Continuing Connected Transactions disclosed by
the Group above in accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The auditors have reported to the Directors
that the above Continuing Connected Transactions: (1) have
received the approval of the Board; (2) are in accordance with
the pricing policies of the Company; (3) have been carried out
in accordance with the relevant provisions of the agreements
governing the transactions; and (4) have not exceeded the
relevant annual caps.

At 31 December 2013, none of the Directors, the management
shareholders or their respective associates (as defined in the
GEM Listing Rules) had an interest in a business which causes
or may cause significant competition with the business of the
Group.

All the Directors do not have any financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship with each other.

The Company confirmed that annual confirmations of
independence were received from each of the Company's
Independent Non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules and all Independent Non-executive
Directors are considered to be independent.
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The Company established an Audit Committee on 11 August
2000 with written terms of reference in accordance with Rules
5.28 to 5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Audit Committee
is currently comprised three members — Mr. Lam Tin Faat, Ms.
Lu Haina and Mr. Fu Ping Man, all of whom are Independent
Non-executive Directors. Mr. Lam Tin Faat is the chairman of
the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee’s principal duties
are to review and supervise the financial reporting process and
internal control procedures of the Group. The Audit Committee
met on a quarterly basis during the year ended 31 December
2013.

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company's total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this annual report.

The Company is committed to the establishment of good
corporate governance. Information on the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 14 to 21.

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual
general meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Grant Thornton Hong
Kong Limited as the auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Li Xia
Chairman

Hong Kong
17 March 2014
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Chairman

Ms. Li is the Chairman of Hong Kong Jewellery Holding Limited,
who is responsible for leading the work of the Board and setting
operation direction and investment strategies for the Company.
Ms. Li served in E/FERAIREZREBRAF], and was appointed
as Executive Vice President with her experience and strength
in jewellery industry. Ms. Li was responsible for administration
and human resource management, marketing operations and
brand promotion. With her leadership, the company achieved
a healthy growth. At the same time, Ms. Li also served as the
Special-commissioned Jewellery Operating Adviser for #iu/l & i@
BB AR to lead the company to achieve excellent results,
which made her the veteran in the jewellery business. Ms. Li
graduated from Central Luzon State University, Republic of the
Philippines with a degree of Bachelor of Science in Business
Administration, and she is currently pursuing her EMBA
degree in MBA School of Dongbei University of Finance and
Economics. Ms. Li was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Group on 3 July 2012.

Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Lin is the Chief Executive Officer of Hong Kong Jewellery
Holding Limited, who is responsible for the corporate
planning and business development of the Company. Mr. Lin
graduated from Central Luzon State University, Republic of the
Philippines with a degree of Bachelor of Science in Business
Administration. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Lin held
important positions in fMBHEZERDER QG MUMNEE
HKEBRAR and MMEmHBAETHR AR, When serving
as the Brand Development Manager and the jewellery Chief
Operating Officer for fMBMIKEHBRAF], Mr. Lin promoted
the company into the large well-known shopping malls in
Jiaxing, Wuxi, Hangzhou, Ningbo, Suzhou and Huzhou in the
short term, and achieved excellent results. During the period
of working for fu/lHRAAE FARAE], Mr. Lin led a team
in jewellery light source design. The LED light designed by his
team quickly took a leap into the jewellery market, becoming
an irreplaceable light source for high-end branded jewellery
counters. Mr. Lin was also invited by /@R EEEEGR A A
to design the jewellery counters and light sources, presenting
a perfect combination of LED lights and jewellery counters. Mr.
Lin was appointed as an Executive Director of the Group on 3
July 2012.
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Mr. Chen is an entrepreneur in the Mainland China, who
held senior positions in various private companies principally
engaged in luxury goods trading business. Mr. Chen obtained
the Diploma of Graduate Gemologist, Diploma of Diamonds
and Diploma of Colored Stones from the Gemological Institute
of America (“GIA”). Mr. Chen was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Group on 3 July 2012.

Mr. Yip possesses over 20 years of experience in the luxury
goods retailing sector. From 1999 to 2012, Mr. Yip held
managerial positions in three luxury goods retail groups focused
in Hong Kong and Mainland China. Mr. Yip graduated from
Guangdong School of Engineering, now known as Guangdong
University of Technology with a bachelor degree in mechanical
engineering in 1991. He obtained a diploma in corporate
management from Peking University. Mr. Yip is an accredited
jewelry professional recognised by the Gemological Institute
of America ("GIA") after obtained the Diploma of Accredited
Jewelry Professional. Mr. Yip was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Group on 3 July 2012.
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Mr. Lam holds a bachelor degree of business administration
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He has more
than 10 years of experience in financial audit, accounting and
financial management. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom
and a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales. Mr. Lam is currently the Independent Non-
executive Director of China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited,
the issued shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1380), the sole proprietor of TF Lam & Company,
a CPA practice in Hong Kong, and a director of Top Team
Secretary Limited and Hongwei Technologies Limited. Mr. Lam
was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Group on 3 July 2012.

Ms. Lu possesses over 8 years of experience in education in
relation to jewellery design. From 2005 to 2010, Ms. Lu taught
at the school of jewellery of Guangzhou Panyu Polytechnic.
Since 2010, Ms. Lu has been teaching at Guangzhou
International Economics College. Ms. Lu graduated from Sun
Yat-Sen University with a bachelor degree in arts and design
and is a holder of a jewellery designer certificate verified by
All-China Federation of Industry & Commerce. Ms. Lu was
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Group on 3 July 2012.

Mr. Fu has more than 10 years of experience in the gold and
jewellery industry in Hong Kong, Mainland China and Taiwan
and holds managerial position in a gold and jewellery company.
Since 2002, Mr. Fu has been the director of Best Billion
Jewellery Company Limited. He is a supervisor of Shenzhen
Gold & Jewellery Association. Mr. Fu was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Group on 3 July
2012.
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Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary

Dr. Tang is the Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary
of Hong Kong Jewellery Holding Limited. Dr. Tang has over
30 years of accounting and financial management experience
and over 10 years of Company Secretary experience in
telecommunication, media and information technology industries.
Prior to joining the Group in 2002, she held managerial position
of Group Financial Controller in several sizeable listed companies
in Hong Kong. Dr. Tang is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom, a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Directors. She also obtained the Diploma of Accredited Jewelry
Professional from the Gemological Institute of America (“GIA").
Dr. Tang received her degree of Bachelor of Arts with honours
in Accountancy, degree of Master of Business Administration
(Executive) and degree of Doctor of Business Administration
from the City University of Hong Kong. Dr. Tang is appointed as
Financial Expert by Hong Kong Council of Accreditation Academic
and Vocational Qualification.

Legal Consultant

Dr. Chu received a doctorate degree from Yunnan University.
She served as a lecturer in university for 29 years. She
became a qualified lawyer in 1994. She specialises in civil and
commercial law and is familiar with the legal matters before and
after listing. She worked as a legal consultant in various large-
scale enterprises in Mainland China and is currently served as
the Company’s legal consultant.

Director of Administration and Human Resources

Ms. Ma obtained her bachelor degree from Jilin University. She
also graduated from Central Luzon State University, Republic
of the Philippines with a degree of Bachelor of Science in
Business Administration. Ms. Ma held senior management
positions in listed companies namely Hong Kong New World
Group, Shenzhen branch and Shenzhen Fountain Corporation,
responsible for organising and coordinating the operations and
management regarding administration and human resources of
the group. She has over 15 years of experience in management
and is currently served as a director of a subsidiary of the
Group.

BEEBHREEL AIWE
BELREEREERERAT ZEFEMBHAE
BRAWE - MELNEM AHEREAREKT
X FAEA=-tFe M BEELRIETEF
NREWELR R_ZEZ_FMAREEZAI -
RERNEEZRARB LM ABEREIEREMS
REZRBN - BB ARBERFAREHMAE
BRAEE  BAGMASERSAMAELEE
FB2ERE8 BZRZEELERIGAD
RENHEEREROR - BELEREFTBND
REEMEFBRENBLEM THARTH
ERELTRULRIMNEESELEM - ME LW
EZERBABMEBRXEETIERUBER -

AR

BELINERMABERBLEN - ESREH_
“thAE CAAEFERRMER  BRRE
BEERER  AEBRRLMARESEARER
EPBEAEETZRAEBEREEER - ]
RARBERER -

TR - A B

BLLBEBANEE  BEREHRASD  LRE
AP EREABREIHEENSE LB -
BLtBELTAAEEHEREERIS A
A Rt R ERERG ARNTCRERER T
BEGBERBAREGTE  AFNEEERT
e AEBTEFHERIEER  RAEFEE
FRAESF -



Deputy General Manager

Mr. Zhang graduated from Panyu Polytechnic Institute. He is
a member of the senior management team of the Company.
He worked for Luk Fook Jewellery and 3-D GOLD Jewellery
and has almost 9 years of extensive experience in the
jewellery industry. He is familiar with the situation of jewellery
enterprises and has ample experience in brand marketing,
market expansion, and brand planning and promotions. He is
responsible for brand marketing and market expansion of the
Company.

Product Analyst

Mr. Lai is the product analyst of the Company. He worked for
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery and 3-D GOLD Jewellery and has over
15 years of extensive experience in the jewellery industry. He
specializes in controlling product turnover rate, regulating the
stock-to-sales ratios and trends, organising existing products
and planning the styles of future products, adjusting the product
styles and prices, fixing the product price and establishing a
price adjustment mechanism.
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Q Grant Thornton
K

To the members of Hong Kong Jewellery Holding Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Hong Kong Jewellery Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 40 to 148,
which comprise the consolidated and company statements of
financial position as at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90
of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

FERKREEZRERATZBRR
(REREEMRLZARLIA)

ARZEED (AT M 3 M ) EFERHENFEI0EE
F1BAZBEURBRBABRABR(ERR DR
EfB AR (E ERE MRS MERE - it
REMBRREENR_ZE—=F+-A=+—H
ZEA RARNM BN KEEEZA LFEH
EBEMEMEANER REREEHRR
HERERER UREZSHABRYENEM
fRIEER -

BENFEFEAAEERBLSGHAMASHEMNE
BB s SR R BB BHR DI 803 BE R A
HEMBHRER  NSHEAVBHRRELEEMA
FHORE  REBERBREGAVBREMY
ZHRFHES] - A EERA BB RR T FEBENR
FFRIERME B B AR -

BFIMETEREBELMNEZTIENGER - BRI
BRE-NN—FRAVEFEOGHZFHEEY
BHREELER > WEAZEBRRBE ° BRI
Sh RBEBMAAIBEEMAE - RABIAA
BENABRREMEMA LB ERARERNEE -

BADIRRE LG ASRMN T BZEER
ETES I ZFEUERRMETERR
& WrtEIRETERIE  UABRRFUFR
EUMBHRREE N FEEMNEARFERRAL -



An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2013 and of the Group's loss and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Level 12

28 Hennessy Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

17 March 2014

Chiu Wing Ning
Practising Certificate No.: P04920
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for the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 —FE— =4+ _-HA=+—HILF/E

Revenue

Other income

Change in inventories
Purchase of goods
Professional fee

Employee benefits expense

Depreciation and amortisation

Other expenses
Finance costs

(Loss)/Profit before income tax

Income tax expense

(Loss)/Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the
year, including reclassification
adjustments and net of tax*

ltems that will be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:

Exchange gain on translation of financial
statements of foreign operations

Reclassification adjustments for the
cumulative gain transferred to profit

or loss:

— release of exchange translation
reserve upon deregistration

of a subsidiary
Change in fair value of

available-for-sale financial assets
Impairment loss on available-for-sale
financial assets transferred to

profit or loss

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive (loss)/income

for the year

(Loss)/Profit for the year
attributable to:

Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

A

H i as
FEE
BEEMm
BXEH
BER/AFHX
IreE M iH
HAbFES
M55 R

RIS B AT
(B518),BF
AR

FR(EBE)EF

FREMZEEA
BREENDEAR
KB HIBRBLIE*

HERHEEmEE
BmKZIAR ¢
MBS RS

7 H BB S W e
EEBRERERLZ
REtE 2 EF#
DA
— i — KB
NGILSS 0
Z B i
AfLEEMEEZ
NRBEED
EEEEERRZ
AHHESHEE
ZRIEE1E

FREMEEBA

FRRMEER) KA
mE

FEAL A (51R) 3R

ZA/NSIEZ 2PN
IR

2013
—E—=

Notes HK$'000
[z FET
b 579,380
7 5,016
67,168
(451,230)
(21,869)
13 (148,293)
(5,599)
(38,556)
8 (740)
9 (14,723)
10 (1,447)
(16,170)

2,464
37 (553)

1,911
(14,259)
11 (14,091)
(2,079)

(16,170)

2012
—E-—F
HK$'000
F&T

350,880
34,163
47,344

(184,645
(41,556
(135,197
(4,773
(29,459

)
)
)
)
)
(295)

36,462
(1,361)

35,101

487

(123)

123

487

35,588

34,158
943

35,101



for the year ended 31 December 2013 &2 —F—=F+_-H=1+—HIFFE

2013 2012
—E-—= —ET——fF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5T FHET T
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2 (EE), A
attributable to: HEE
Owners of the Company RARER A (12,429) 34,559
Non-controlling interests FEIERTRE RS (1,830) 1,029
(14,259) 35,588
HK cents HK cents
AL gl
(Loss)/Earnings per share for ARRHEEAER
(loss)/profit attributable to the EiEER
owners of the Company (|, BF
during the year
- Basic and diluted —EARREE 12 (1.23) 3.37
* There is no tax effect on the component of other comprehensive ~ * BE_EZ-=FR_ET—_FIRFELHHEM
income for the years ended 2013 and 2012. 2EWAMMER IO IR BEEHBELE -

The notes on pages 48 to 148 are an integral part of these Z48E = H148E WM TR I ST EREL —
financial statements. 45 o



as at 31 December 2013 R=_F—=F+_HA=+—H

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Available-for-sale financial assets
Goodwill

Development costs

Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Finance lease receivables

Amounts due from customers
for contract work

Trade receivables

Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities

Trade payables

Other payables and accrued charges

Borrowings

Amounts due to customers for
contract work

Amounts due to directors

Tax payables

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Net assets

BERERE

FRBEE
WxE - BB NEE
AHHESREE
kS

G
EERIREE

REBEE

TE
REMRERKFIR

R EF &K TIZFIA

FEUWE 5 AR

HARURIA ~ 11E M

i 08

wARBEFARER

ZEBEE
RITERNR S

RBAE
FEfTE 5 BR K

Ht SR LT E R

fBE
ENEPEKTIZNIA

FENEEFR
FERTRIR

RBEERE

EEABRRBAE

AEEFE

Notes

B E

15
17
18
19
31

21
20

22
23

24

25
27

28
29
30

22
32

2013
—8-=

HK$'000

FET

14,453

810
1,317

16,580

115,165

41,394
35,890

51,026

26,602
71,355

341,432

50,429
46,964
55,943

9,363

2,540
506

165,745

175,687

192,267

192,267

2012
HK$OOO
TAT

10,000
2,543

2,633
2,078

17,254

47,997
187

53,120
138,608

41,158

5,151
87,763

373,984

73,127
40,476
111,374

12,264
1,648
391

239,280

134,704

151,958

151,958



as at 31 December 2013 R=—F—=F+_-_H=+—H

2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Lz FET FH&T
EQUITY iR #E
Share capital [N 33 118,846 101,505
Reserves G 34 68,611 40,158
Equity attributable to the owners of BAREE AEGRRE
the Company 187,457 141,663
Non-controlling interests IR ER 4,810 10,295
Total equity BRREALE 192,267 151,958
Li Xia B Lin Di il
Director E2 Director o

The notes on pages 48 to 148 are an integral part of these F48BZFXF148E MBI EMIEHRERA —
financial statements. TR o



as at 31 December 2013 R=_F—=F+_HA=+—H

2013 2012
—F—= —E—=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BT F&T FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Interest in subsidiaries RWBREZ#Ex 16 = =
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments AR TE 225 230
Amounts due from subsidiaries R NG e 26 144,414 119,670
Bank balances and cash RIT1F75 &fﬁi 27 543 5,528
145,182 125,428
Current liabilities RBAE
Other payables and accrued charges H b E S R K
TEIRE A 566 377
Amounts due to subsidiaries FENWBARIE 26 64,753 64,753
65,319 65,130
Net current assets RBEEFE 79,863 60,298
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERABERS 79,863 60,298
Net assets BEEFE 79,863 60,298
EQUITY R
Share capital &N 33 118,846 101,505
Reserves B 34 (38,983) (41,207)
Total equity RrEARE 79,863 60,298
Li Xia 3= Lin Di Ml
Director EBE Director EF

The notes on pages 48 to 148 are an integral part of these H48E = H148E WM TR I ST EREL —
financial statements. 245 o



for the year ended 31 December 2013 &2 —F—=F+_-H=1+—HIFFE

2013 2012
—ZF—= —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Cash flows from operating activities RELETH2RERE
(Loss)/Profit before income tax BT SR AT(EH8) V% F (14,723) 36,462
Adjustments for: T
Depreciation e 3,776 2,677
Amortisation of development costs B AN 2 2 5 1,823 2,096
Provision for impairment of trade receivables eI B 5 R FOR B = 13
Reversal of provision for impairment of trade eI B B BRFOR B
receivables k4 (9) -
Impairment loss on available-for-sale financial ~ A[ftHE L FIEE
assets 2 REEE 2,543 4,023
Impairment loss on goodwill R REEE = 1,140
Net loss on disposal/Written off of property, HeE GIEME - BE
plant and equipment Nt 2 FEE 1,213 -
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and HEYE « HE MERE
equipment 2 F W - (30,870)

BARrBESABRER

ZEBMEBEZ AAEE

&8, (k) 1,389 (1,006)
HERARBEA

Fair value loss/(gain) on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Gain on disposal of financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss Bk ERBEE W - (142)
Interest expense MEMZ 740 295
Written down of inventories T8 2 #MuR 1,623 -
Dividend income I Bl e (850) (122)
Interest income B (936) (958)
Currency translation adjustment HINGEE B A EE 6,005 19

Operating profit before working BEESEBE LA
capital changes il 2,594 13,627
Increase in inventories FEEh (69,951) (47,349)
Decrease in finance lease receivables Bh & & fE W R E e D 187 379
Decrease/(Increase) in amounts due from JEREF &4 TIEFIA

customers for contract work w (1) 11,726 (18,959)
Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivables JEWE ZERFOR D,

(&) 102,727 (97,120)
Increase in other receivables, deposits and Hih R FIE « e &

prepayments FEA SRIEIE hN (9,318) (27,995)
(Increase)/Decrease in financial assets BAREEFABRRZ

at fair value through profit or loss SREEGEM), R (22,840) 749
(Decrease)/Increase in trade payables JENEZ ZEZCED)

N (22,698) 46,207
Increase in other payables and accrued H At B 708 M AR

charges B 6,174 2,254
(Decrease)/Increase in amounts due to ENEPAELQIIERIE

customers for contract work CRA), /180 (2,845) 5,428

Cash used in operations CEEEMEACIRE (4,244) (122,779)
Interest paid EAFIE (265) (295)
Income tax paid EFER (205) =
Net cash used in operating activities WRESTE T A IR E F 5 (4,714) (123,074)



for the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 —FE— =4+ _-HA=+—HILF/E

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant

and equipment
Dividend received
Interest received

Net cash (used in)/from
investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Increase in amounts due to directors

Repayment of amounts due to directors

Return of capital from a deregistered
subsidiary to non-controlling interests

Proceeds from issuance of shares
upon placement
Share issuing costs

Net cash (used in)/from financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Effect on foreign exchange rate changes,
on cash held

Cash and cash equivalents at 31
December, represented by bank
balances and cash

The notes on pages 48 to 148 are an integral part of these

financial statements.

Notes

B

RERETHZRERE

BEME - BFELRE
HEME - BEK
REPTIFIA
EUALE

B WA S

REZEFT(BF),
EEZHTFE

RERMETHRESRE
BEEMSHIA
EEEER
FE{SE = FRIAIE N
EEENESHIE
RE—FEE
WEBARZEAN
F IR A A 2 37
REEREITIRG
Z P8 RIR 33
% 17 84T A 33

BEZBAT(BF)
ELZREFH

RERBREEEBYZ
(R4) /¥ nF

R—HA—BzHEE
KRS EEY
EXRFHHAFFR S
B

Rt+t=-—A=+—~H

ZRERAESEEY
MRTERRREE

BB

2013
—E-—=
HK$’000
FiB
(9,222)
44

850
386

(7,942)

55,055
(114,213)

1,512
(680)
(3,655)

58,959
(736)

(3,758)

(16,414)

87,763

71,355

2012
—E——fF
HK$'000
T
(3,982)
36,900

122
925

33,965

114,999
(9,594)
1,648

107,053

17,944

69,233

586

87,763

FASEEF148E MM BRI SRR —



for the year ended 31 December 2013 &2 —F—=F+_-H=1+—HIFFE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

ARRREAELRE
Investment
Share Share revaluation  Exchange Accumulated
capital  premium* reserve* reserve* losses* Total
RE
ke RieEr  EMEE  NERE  EHEE a5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
iR Tin THER iR Tin ThER
Balance at 1 January 2012 REE-E-A-RAMEHR 10150 179,556 = 5612 (179569) 107,104
Profit for the year a2yl - - - - 34,158 34,158
Other comprehensive income EB2ERA
Exchange gain on translation of BN EBEEREY
financial statements of foreign 38 e
operations - - - 401 - 401
Change in fair value of available- ~ WEEHESREEY
for-sale financial assets NMEEEY - - (123) - - (123)
Impairment loss on availablefor- ~ REAZBEE AL E
sale financial assets transferred S BEEZHEKE
to profit or loss - - 123 - - 123
Total comprehensive income for ~ ER2ERALE
the year - - - 401 34,158 34,559
Balance at 31 December 2012 and R=Z--F+-F=1+-H
1 January 2013 R=Z2-zf-H-H
i3 101,505 179,556 - 6013 (145411) 141,663
Issue of shares upon placement,  REEREITRA -
net of issuing costs (note 33 BHBBIRE
(Krz£33) 17,341 40,882 - - - 58,223
Deregistration of a subsiciary Inote 37) & i—TMEAE (H3E37) - - - - - =
Transactions with owners REFAZRS 17,341 40,882 - - - 58,223
Loss for the year FRER - - - - (14,001) (14,001)
Other comprehensive income EhzEMA
Exchange gain on translation of B EBEEREY
financial statements of foreign 38 e
operations - - - 2,215 - 2,215
Reclassification adiustments for ~ BEEZBxRF 7 2l
the cumulative gain transferred LENNEEE:
to profit or loss:
- release of exchange ~HE-EHBAAR
translation reserve upon Fh7ELRE
deregistration of 8 (Fist37)
subsidiary note 37) - - - (553) - (553)
Total comprehensive loss for the FAZEFELE
year - - - 1,662 (14,091) (12,429)
Balance at 31 December 2013 ~ W=Z-=£+-A=+-§
e 118,846 220,438 - 1,675 (159,502) 187,457
* These reserves accounts comprise the Group's reserves of *

HK$68,611,000 (2012: HK$40,158,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

The notes on pages 48 to 148 are an integral part of these

financial statements.
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9,266

943

86

1,029

10,295

(3655)
(3,695)

(2,079)

249

(1,830)

4,810

Total
equity

gt
HKS'000
TR

116,370

35,101

487
(123)

123

35,588

151,958

58,223
(3,655)

54,568

(16,170)

2,464

(553)

(14,259)

192,267
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for the year ended 31 December 2013 2 —FE—=F+—-A=+—HIFFZ

Hong Kong Jewellery Holding Limited (the “Company”)
is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company
with limited liability. The address of its registered office
is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda and, its principal place of business is Hong
Kong. The Company's shares are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (the ""GEM"') of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited.

In the opinion of the directors, at the end of the
reporting period, the Company is controlled by Sino
Eminent Limited, a limited liability company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands. The ultimate parent of
the Company is Ocean Expert Investments Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. lIts
principal subsidiaries are engaged in the design and
sales of gold and jewellery products, the development,
sale and implementation of enterprise software and the
provision of systems integration, professional services
and Application Service Provider (“ASP") services, and
investment holding. The Group’s operations are based in
Hong Kong and The People’s Republic of China (“PRC").

The financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2013 were approved for issue by the board of
directors on 17 March 2014.

The financial statements on pages 40 to 148 have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The financial statements also include
the applicable disclosure requirements of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“GEM Listing Rules”).
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for the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z —E— =1+ - HA=+—HIFFE

The significant accounting policies that have
been used in the preparation of these financial
statements are summarised below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years
presented unless otherwise stated. The adoption
of new or amended HKFRSs and their impact
on the Group's financial statements, if any, are
disclosed in note 3.

The financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for financial
instruments classified as available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss which are stated at fair values. The
measurement bases are fully described in the
accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in the preparation of the
financial statements. Although these estimates
are based on management’'s best knowledge and
judgement of current events and actions, actual
results may ultimately differ from those estimates.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the financial
statements, are disclosed in note 4.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December each year.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special
purpose entities) controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity when
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.
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for the year ended 31 December 2013 2 —FE—=F+—-A=+—HIFFZ

In the consolidated financial statements, the
results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the effective date
of acquisition and up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains and losses on transactions between
group companies are eliminated in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Where
unrealised losses on intra-group asset sales are
reversed on consolidation, the underlying asset
is also tested for impairment from the Group's
perspective. Amounts reported in the financial
statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted
where necessary to ensure consistency with the
accounting policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
a subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly
to the Company, and in respect of which the
Group has not agreed any additional terms with
the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual
obligation in respect of those interests that
meets the definition of a financial liability. For
each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either
at fair value or at their proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

REEMBRER - FAKBREE
MM BARMRE  ARBERE
BEFHBEHELERE R (WE
RIEBREEHFREBRE MM EEK

SEARAIMZRS - BRI ARE
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for the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z —E— =1+ - HA=+—HIFFE

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from the equity attributable
to the owners of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the owners of the
Company.

In the Company's statement of financial
position, subsidiaries are carried at cost less any
impairment loss unless the subsidiary is held for
sale or included in a disposal group. Cost includes
directly attributable costs of investment. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable at the end of the reporting period. All
dividends whether received out of the investee's
pre or post-acquisition profits are recognised in
the Company’s profit or loss.

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are
accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date.
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Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity in the acquiree (if any) over the net of
the acquisition—date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If,
after assessment, the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair
value on the acquirer's previously held interest
in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

The financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong Dollars (HK$), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the
consolidated entities, foreign currency transactions
are translated into the functional currency of
the individual entity using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the
end of the reporting period, monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at that date. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the end of the reporting period
retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.
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In the consolidated financial statements,
all individual financial statements of foreign
operations, originally presented in a currency
different from the Group’s presentation currency,
have been converted into HK$. Assets and
liabilities have been translated into HK$ at the
closing rates at the end of the reporting period.
Income and expenses have been converted
into HK$ at the exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates, or at the average rates over the
reporting period provided that the exchange rates
do not fluctuate significantly. Any differences
arising from this procedure have been recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in the exchange reserve in equity.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign operation on or after
1 January 2005 have been treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign operation and translated
into HK$ at the closing rates. Goodwill arising on
the acquisitions of foreign operations before 1
January 2005 is translated at the foreign exchange
rate that applied at the date of acquisition of the
foreign operation.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e.
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, or loss of significant influence over
an associate that includes a foreign operation),
all of the accumulated exchange differences in
respect of that operation attributable to the Group
are reclassified to profit or loss. Any exchange
differences that have previously been attributed
to non-controlling interests are derecognised, but
they are not reclassified to profit or loss.
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In the case of a partial disposal (i.e. no loss of
control) of a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e.
of associates or jointly controlled entities not
involving a change of accounting basis), the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses (note 2.19). The cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

As the Group's lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, the entire lease payments are included
in the cost of the leasehold land and buildings as
a finance lease in property, plant and equipment
(note 2.6).

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
provided to write off the cost less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method, at the following rates per
annum:

Leasehold land and buildings 2.5%
Leasehold improvements 20 to 33'/3%
Computer and office equipment 10 to 50%
ASP software 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20 to 25%
Motor vehicles 25 to 30%
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The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods
and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal
is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in the profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
the replaced part is derecognised. All other costs,
such as repairs and maintenance are charged to
the profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification
of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to
whether substantively all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group. Specially, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land
and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the
land element and building element of the lease
at the inception of the lease. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and building elements, the entire lease
is generally classified as a finance lease and
accounted for as property, plant and equipment
(note 2.5).
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Goodwill arising in a business combination is
recognised as an asset at the date that control
is acquired (the acquisition date). Goodwill is
measured as the excess of the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if
any) over the Group's interest in the net fair value
of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities
measured as at the acquisition date.

If, after reassessment, the Group's interest in the
fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree
(if any), the excess is recognised immediately in
profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to
cash-generating units and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 2.19).

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the
attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is
included in the determination of the amount of
gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill relating to
business combinations prior to 1 January 2001
continues to be held in reserves and will be
charged to the retained profits at the time when
the business to which the goodwill relates is
disposed of or when a cash-generating unit to
which goodwill relates becomes impaired.
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Costs that are directly attributable to development
activities are recognised as intangible assets
provided they meet the following recognition
requirements:

(i) demonstration of technical feasibility of the
prospective product for internal use or sale;

(ii) there is an intention to complete the
intangible asset and use or sell it;

(iii) the Group's ability to use or sell the
intangible asset is demonstrated;

(iv) the intangible asset will generate probable
economic benefits through internal use or
sale;

(V) sufficient technical, financial and other
resources are available for completion; and

(vi) the expenditure attributable to the
intangible asset can be reliably measured.

Direct costs include employee costs incurred on
development activities along with an appropriate
portion of relevant overheads. The costs of
development of internally generated software,
products or knowhow that meet the above
recognition criteria are recognised as intangible
assets. They are subject to the same subsequent
measurement method as acquired intangible
assets.

All other development costs are expensed as
incurred.
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After initial recognition of the development costs,
intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is provided on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. Amortisation commences
when the intangible assets are available for use.
The following useful lives are applied:

Capitalised development costs 3 years
The assets’ amortisation methods and useful lives
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the

end of each reporting period.

Intangible assets are tested for impairment as
described below in note 2.19.

The Group's accounting policies for financial
assets other than interest in subsidiaries are set
out below.

Financial assets are classified into the following
categories:

- Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

- Loans and receivables

- Available-for-sale financial assets
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Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition depending on
the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired and where allowed and appropriate, re-
evaluates this designation at the end of every
reporting period.

All financial assets are recognised when, and
only when, the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Regular way purchases of financial assets are
recognised on trade date. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair
value through profit or loss, directly attributable
transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments
expire or are transferred and substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred.

At the end of each reporting period, financial
assets other than at fair value through profit or
loss are reviewed to assess whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. If any such
evidence exists, an impairment loss is determined
and recognised based on the classification of the
financial asset.
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Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss include financial assets held for
trading.

Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of selling in the near term, or it is part of a
portfolio of identified financial instruments
that are managed together and for which
there is evidence of a recent pattern of
short-term profit-taking.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the
financial assets are measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss. Fair value is determined by
reference to active market transactions.
The fair value gain or loss does not include
any dividend or interest earned on these
financial assets. Dividend and interest
income is recognised in accordance with
the Group's policies in note 2.17 to these
financial statements.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Loans and receivables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less
any impairment losses. Amortised cost is
calculated taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and includes fees
that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate and transaction cost. Interest
is recognised in profit or loss.
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Non-derivative financial assets that do not
qualify for inclusion in any of the other
categories of financial assets are classified
as available-for-sale financial assets.

All financial assets within this category
are subsequently measured at fair value.
Gain or loss arising from a change in the
fair value excluding any dividend and
interest income is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in the investment revaluation
reserve in equity, except for impairment
losses (see the policy below) and foreign
exchange gains and losses on monetary
assets, until the financial asset is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative
gain or loss is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss. Interest calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in
profit or loss.

The fair value of available-for-sale monetary
assets denominated in a foreign currency
is determined in that foreign currency and
translated at the spot rate at the end of
reporting period. The change in fair value
attributable to translation differences that
result from a change in amortised cost of
the asset is recognised in profit or loss,
and other changes are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

For available-for-sale investments in equity
securities that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be
settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
instruments, they are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses at the
end of each reporting period subsequent to
initial recognition.
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At the end of each reporting period, financial
assets other than at fair value through profit or
loss are reviewed to determine whether there is
any objective evidence of impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual
financial assets includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about one or
more of the following loss events:

- Significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- A breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- It becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

- Significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor;

- The disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties; and

- A significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.
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Loss events in respect of a group of financial
assets include observable data indicating that
there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from the group of financial
assets. Such observable data includes but not
limited to adverse changes in the payment status
of debtors in the Group and, national or local
economic conditions that correlate with defaults
on the assets in the Group.

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss
is measured and recognised as follows:

(i) Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss on loans and receivables
carried at amortised cost has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’'s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition).
The amount of the loss is recognised in
the profit or loss of the period in which the
impairment occurs.
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Financial assets carried at amortised cost
(Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount
of impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed to the extent
that it does not result in a carrying amount
of the financial asset exceeding what the
amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised at the date
the impairment is reversed. The amount of
the reversal is recognised in profit or loss
of the period in which the reversal occurs.

Available-for-sale financial assets

When a decline in the fair value of an
available-for-sale financial asset has
been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity and
there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired, an amount is removed from
equity and recognised in profit or loss
as an impairment loss. That amount is
measured as the difference between the
asset’s acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that
asset previously recognised in profit or
loss.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.9

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Available-for-sale financial assets
(Continued)

Reversals in respect of investment in equity
instruments classified as available-for-sale
and stated at fair value are not recognised
in the profit or loss. The subsequent
increase in fair value is recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Financial assets carried at cost

The amount of impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the financial asset and
the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Such impairment losses are not reversed in
subsequent periods.
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Impairment losses of financial assets other than
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and trade receivables that are stated at amortised
cost, are written off against the corresponding
assets directly. Where the recovery of trade
receivables is considered doubtful but not remote,
the impairment losses for doubtful receivables
are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery of trade
receivables is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade
receivables directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account in respect of that receivables
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities and
unquoted equity securities carried at cost are not
reversed in a subsequent period. Consequently,
if the fair value of an available-for-sale equity
security increases in the remainder of an annual
period, or in a subsequent period, the increase is
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Inventories, which comprise merchandise held
for resale, raw materials and finished goods, are
carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase
and, where applicable, other costs that have
been incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition, is determined
using the first in, first out method. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and applicable selling expenses.

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank
and in hand and demand deposits with banks.

The Group’s financial liabilities mainly include trade
and other payables, amounts due to directors and
other borrowings. They are included in line items
in the statement of financial position as trade
payables, other payables and accrued charges,
amounts due to directors and borrowings under
current liabilities.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All interest related charges
are recognised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note
2.21).

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.
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Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the end of the reporting period.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially
at their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

A financial guarantee contract is a contract
that requires the issuer (or guarantor) to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.
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Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within trade and other payables.
Where consideration is received or receivable for
the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss
on initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised if and when it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call upon the
Group under the guarantee and the amount of
that claim on the Group is expected to exceed the
current carrying amount (i.e. the amount initially
recognised less accumulated amortisation), where
appropriate.

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys
a right to use a specific asset or assets for an
agreed period of time in return for a payment or
a series of payments. Such a determination is
made based on an evaluation of the substance of
the arrangement and is regardless of whether the
arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.
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Assets that are held by the Group under
leases which transfer to the Group
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases, with an
exception as below.

Land held for own use under an operating
lease, the fair value of which cannot be
measured separately from the fair value of
a building situated thereon, at the inception
of the lease, is accounted for as being held
under a finance lease, unless the building
is also clearly held under an operating lease
(see note 2.6). For these purposes, the
inception of the lease is the time that the
lease was first entered into by the Group,
or taken over from the previous lessee.

Where the Group has the right to use
assets held under operating leases,
payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease terms except where
an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased assets. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals,
if any, are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are
incurred.
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When assets are leased out under a finance
lease, the present value of the lease
payments is recognised as a receivable. The
difference between the gross receivable
and the present value of the receivable is
recognised as unearned finance income.

Lease income is recognised over the term
of the lease using the net investment
method, which reflects a constant periodic
rate of return on the net investment in the
lease.

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the
amount of the obligation can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share
capital is determined using the nominal value of
shares that have been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing
of shares are deducted from share premium (net
of any related income tax benefit) to the extent
they are incremental costs directly attributable to
the equity transaction.
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Revenue comprises the fair value for the
consideration received or receivable for the
sales of goods, rendering of services and the
use by others of the Group's assets yielding
interest, royalties and dividends, net of rebates
and discounts. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured
reliably, revenue is recognised as follows:

Sales of gold and jewellery products are
recognised when the Group sells a product to the
customer.

Franchise income in respect of the use of the
Group's brand is recognised on an accrual basis
in accordance with the substance of the relevant
agreements.

In circumstances where the contract price can be
allocated on a reasonable basis to the elements
of resale of hardware and software products,
sales of software licences and development of
customised software, revenue is recognised as
described below:

(a) Revenue from resale of complementary
hardware and software products is
recognised when the goods are delivered
and title has been passed;

(b) Revenue from sales of software licences is
recognised upon delivery of the software
products to the customer when there are
no post-delivery obligations;
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Revenue from the development of
customised software is recognised by
reference to the stage of completion of the
customisation work (including post-delivery
service support) at the end of the reporting
period, as measured by reference to
services performed to date as a percentage
of total services to be performed in relation
to the design and prescribed services as
agreed with customers to be rendered in
different phases.

Where the contract price cannot be allocated into
individual elements of the sales of enterprise
software products and custom development,
revenue from sales of enterprise software
products and custom development is recognised
by reference to the stage of completion of the
sales of enterprise software products and custom
development (including post-delivery service
support) at the end of the reporting period, as
measured by reference to the costs incurred to
date as compared to the total costs to be incurred
under the transaction.

Maintenance service income is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the terms of the
relevant maintenance service contracts. Where
maintenance service income is not separately
invoiced, it is unbundled from licence fees and
deferred and recognised on a straight-line basis
over the period of the relevant maintenance
service contracts.

Systems integration income is recognised when
the services are provided.

Professional services income is recognised when
the services are provided.

ASP services income is recognised when the
services are provided.
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Consultancy and management fee income in
respect of technical support, and consultancy
services and management services are recognised
in the period when services are rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Contract revenue on the rendering of services
comprises the agreed contract amount. Costs
of rendering services comprise labour and other
costs of personnel directly engaged in providing
the services and attributable overheads.

Revenue from the rendering of services
is recognised based on the percentage of
completion of the transaction, provided that the
revenue, the costs incurred and the estimated
costs to completion can be measured reliably.
The percentage of completion is established by
reference to the estimated stage of completion (see
note 2.17).

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon
as they are anticipated by management.

Where estimated value of work performed
exceeds progress billings, the surplus is treated
as an amount due from contract customers for
contract work.
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Where progress billings exceed estimated value
of work performed, the surplus is treated as an
amount due to contract customers for contract
work.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary,
development costs, property, plant and equipment
and the Company’s interest in subsidiaries are
subject to impairment testing.

Goodwill and development costs with indefinite
useful lives or those not yet available for use
are tested for impairment at least annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication
that they are impaired. All other assets are tested
for impairment whenever there are indications
that the asset’'s carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset's
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs to sell,
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset.
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For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group of
assets that generate cash inflows independently
(i.,e. a cash-generating unit). As a result, some
assets are tested individually for impairment and
some are tested at cash-generating unit level.
Goodwill in particular is allocated to those cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from
synergies of the related business combination
and represent the lowest level within the group
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and is not larger than an
operating segment. Impairment losses recognised
for cash-generating units, to which goodwill has
been allocated, are credited initially to the carrying
amount of goodwill. Any remaining impairment
loss is charged pro rata to the other assets in
the cash-generating unit, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less cost to sell, or value in
use, if determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods. In respect of other assets,
an impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the asset’s recoverable amount
and only to the extent that the asset's carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation
or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim
period in respect of goodwill are not reversed
in a subsequent period. This is the case even
if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed
only at the end of the financial year to which the
interim period relates.
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Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution
retirement benefits scheme (the "MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for all of its employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in the PRC, Malaysia and Singapore are
required to participate in the central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute certain percentage of their payroll costs
to the central pension scheme.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss as employees rendered services
during the year. The Group’s obligations under
these plans are limited to the fixed percentage
contributions payable.

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.
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Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment
income earned on the temporary investment
of the specific borrowings, for the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying asset
are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale. Other
borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the
cost of a qualifying asset when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are
being incurred and activities that are necessary
to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale
are being undertaken. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are complete.

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred
tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities
comprise those obligations to, or claims from,
fiscal authorities relating to the current or prior
reporting period, that are unpaid at the end of the
reporting period. They are calculated according to
the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the fiscal
periods to which they relate, based on the taxable
profit for the year. All changes to current tax
assets or liabilities are recognised as a component
of tax expense in profit or loss.
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Deferred tax is calculated using the liability
method on temporary differences at the end
of the reporting period between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and their respective tax bases.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, tax losses available to be carried
forward as well as other unused tax credits, to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit,
including existing taxable temporary differences,
will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses and
unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither taxable nor
accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting,
at tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period the liability is settled or the asset realised,
provided they are enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss, or in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity if they
relate to items that are charged or credited to
other comprehensive income or directly to equity.
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Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are
presented in net if, and only if:

(a)

the Group has the legally enforceable right
to set off the recognised amounts; and

intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities in net if, and only if:

(a)

the entity has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities; and

the deferred tax assets and the deferred
tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(ii) different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.
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The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the
regular internal financial information reported
to the executive directors for their decisions
about resources allocation to the Group's
business components and for their review of the
performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined
following the Group’s major product and service
lines.

The Group has identified the following reportable
segments:

o Jewellery Products: design and sales of
gold and jewellery products

o IT Products and Services: provision of
information technology services and
products, including enterprise software
products, systems integration, professional
services and ASP services

Each of these operating segments is managed
separately as each of the product and service lines
requires different resources as well as marketing
approaches. All inter-segment transfers are carried
out at arm’s length prices.

The measurement policies the Group uses for
reporting segment results under HKFRS 8 are the
same as those used in its financial statements
prepared under HKFRSs, except that corporate
income and expenses which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment are not included in arriving at
the operating results of the operating segment.

Segment assets include all assets but corporate
assets which are not directly attributable to the
business activities of any operating segment and
are not allocated to a segment.

==
=S
=

ZFT A= HIEFE

Kﬁliﬁ;ﬁﬁiﬂﬁ§$$&iﬁqﬁﬁﬁﬁ
BEM  UHEERAEERHAE
R EB 1 ) B TR 2 @E{’Eﬁim DA B g
HERAZFAKBOORIR - M
AEBARBEZFENE D EED
MREHEDBELR - HATEFER
52 ED 5B R EY 567 AR KRB
o DRRAREZ T 2ER MR
BHERIETE °

AEECHRIE TR 28H 0

. KEEM: R MHERES

KEEmM

. BB E m R R ¢ Rt
BARMERERER B
EESRFER - RHEEK
B AR I R A AR A £
e AR #%5

R & Em MR ERIFEER M
MG EH AR - WELEDETS 1I
RIERE - AN BEERIIRA
BRET -

REBEFEM B HRE LR ES - &
SEREZJN BEENTERR
HEERBEFEMBHREERGERDN
MEmERMAENRR - EFEER

5%11%%&52%%@%&
RRARRAR  REFEEED#2
RERBRI TBREENR -

DHEEREMABRE  HXIFE
ERBREARENB2EBEES
MEREETNEDEEEEMDE -



for the year ended 31 December 2013 B E = FE—=F1+=-A=+—HILFZ

Segment liabilities exclude corporate liabilities
which are not directly attributable to the business
activities of any operating segment and are not
allocated to a segment.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to
reportable segments.

(a) A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group if
that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the
Group’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others);

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member);

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party;
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for the year ended 31 December 2013 &£ —Z&—=
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Related parties (Continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions applies: (Continued)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);
or

A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity.
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In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the new standards, amendments and interpretations
(the “"new HKFRSs'') issued by the HKICPA, which
are relevant to and effective for the Group’s financial
statements for the annual period beginning on 1 January
2013. Of these, the following developments are relevant
to the Group’s financial statements:

o Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements — Presentation of ltems of Other
Comprehensive Income

° HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

° HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
° HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
o Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle

° Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Impacts of the adoption of the new or amended HKFRSs
are discussed below:

The amendments require entities to present separately
the items of other comprehensive income that would
be reclassified to profit or loss in the future if certain
conditions are met from those that would never be
reclassified to profit or loss. The presentation of other
comprehensive income in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income in these
financial statements has been modified accordingly.

In addition, the Group has chosen to use the new title
“statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income” as introduced by the amendments in these
financial statements.
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HKFRS 10 replaces the requirements in HKAS 27
Consolidated and separate financial statements relating
to the preparation of consolidated financial statements
and HK-SIC 12 Consolidation — Special purpose entities.
It introduces a single control model to determine
whether an investee should be consolidated, by
focusing on whether the entity has power over the
investee, exposure or rights to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and the ability to use its
power to affect the amount of those returns.

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 10, the Group
has changed its accounting policy with respect to
determining whether it has control over an investee. The
adoption does not change any of the control conclusions
reached by the Group in respect of its involvement with
other entities as at 1 January 2013.

HKFRS 12 brings together into a single standard all
the disclosure requirements relevant to an entity's
interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates
and unconsolidated structured entities. The disclosures
required by HKFRS 12 are generally more extensive than
those previously required by the respective standards.
To the extent that the requirements are applicable to the
Group, the Group has provided those disclosures in note
16.
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HKFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual
HKFRSs with a single source of fair value measurement
guidance. HKFRS 13 also contains extensive disclosure
requirements about fair value measurements for both
financial instruments and non-financial instruments. To
the extent that the requirements are applicable to the
Group, the Group has provided those disclosures in
notes 17, 25 and 39.

This cycle of annual improvements contains amendments
to five standards with consequential amendments to
other standards and interpretations. Among them, HKAS
1 has been amended to clarify that an opening statement
of financial position is required only when a retrospective
application of an accounting policy, a retrospective
restatement or a reclassification has a material effect
on the information presented in the opening statement
of financial position. The amendments also remove the
requirement to present related notes to the opening
statement of financial position when such statement is
presented.

The improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle does not
have any material impact on these financial statements
for the year.

The amendments introduce new disclosures in respect of
offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities. Those
new disclosures are required for all recognised financial
instruments that are set off in accordance with HKAS 32
Financial instruments: Presentation and those that are
subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement
or similar agreement that covers similar financial
instruments and transactions, irrespective of whether
the financial instruments are set off in accordance with
HKAS 32.
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The adoption of the amendments does not have an
impact on these financial statements because the Group
has not offset financial instruments, nor has it entered
into master netting arrangement or similar agreement
which is subject to the disclosures of HKFRS 7 during
the periods presented.

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements,
certain new and amended HKFRSs have been published
but are not yet effective, and have not been adopted
early by the Group.

The directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements
will be adopted in the Group’'s accounting policy for
the first period beginning after the effective date of the
pronouncement. The directors are currently assessing the
impact of these HKFRSs but are not yet in the position
to state whether they would have any material impact on
the Group’s financial statements.

Information on these new pronouncements that
are expected to be relevant to the Group’s financial
statements is provided below.

Effective for accounting
periods beginning
on or after
Amendments to
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation — Offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities 1 January 2014

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2015

MR AEBE NPT 25 HE AL A S R
TR TEITYAETEEMBRSER
SR ERTE R FREE LB AU
Wk WERARFETATSH B FNH
BREXTE -

KRBT ELEMERRER - BT
RAERT BB B 15 s RIS B MM E
REX - AW EWARE R R RN o

EXEM MACRAMZER - BRAM
ERBMRFENERPRAEARE S
HERARA - EFRIEFELEFBMG
BREEUZFE - BREBREMBLLE
BEMBHRELENSEHAEE MR
RBREFERTE -

TEH B R B 2 B S R AR R 2 B AR E T
W EREMR T -

WA T5IEH
sz &z
ELEilD
BB EFHERIEI2HR 2
E5] SmIHE:
25 - HEHE R
EEMERAB —FT-HF—A—H

ERMBREER
£k eMIA —T—HF—A—H



for the year ended 31 December 2013 2 —FE—=F+—-A=+—HIFFZ

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and st et R HEMRE(S
are based on historical experience and other factors, FEEREEBIET  WRKEHELEEY
including expectations of future events that are believed TEHR )BTRS -

to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year
are discussed below:

If circumstances indicate that the net book value
of a long lived asset may not be recoverable,
the asset may be considered “impaired” and
an impairment loss may be recognised in
accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
The carrying amounts of long lived assets are
reviewed periodically in order to assess whether
the recoverable amounts have declined below
the carrying amounts. These assets are tested
for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that their recorded
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. When
such a decline has occurred, the carrying amount
is reduced to the recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value
less costs to sell and its value in use. It is difficult
to precisely estimate fair value less costs to sell
because quoted market prices for the Group's
assets are not readily available. In determining the
value in use, expected cash flows generated by
the asset are discounted to their present value,
which requires significant estimation relating to
the level of sales volume, selling prices and the
amount of operating costs. The Group uses all
readily available information in determining an
amount that is a reasonable approximation of
recoverable amount, including estimates based
on reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of sales volume, selling prices and the
amount of operating costs.
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The provisioning policy for bad and doubtful
debts of the Group is based on the evaluation
of collectability and ageing analysis of the trade
receivables. A considerable amount of estimation
and judgement is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, including
their current creditworthiness, past collection
history and financial condition. If the financial
conditions of these customers were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional allowance will be required.

The available-for-sale financial assets as recorded
in the consolidated statement of financial position
included an investment in unlisted private equity
fund (the “Fund”) amounting to HK$Nil (2012:
HK$2,543,000) which are stated at fair value.

The Fund’s assets mainly represent investments
in listed and unlisted companies in high growth
technology industries (the “Investments”). The
fair value of the Investments is reviewed by
management of the Fund semi-annually on 30
June and 31 December, which estimation involves
judgements of management of the Fund.

Impairment loss of HK$2,543,000 (2012:
HK$123,000) was provided during the year
because the directors are of the opinion that the
amount is uncollectable as the Fund has been put
into liquidation in late 2013.
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Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and selling
expenses. These estimates are based on the
current market condition and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products
of similar nature. It could change significantly
as a result of changes in customer taste and
competitor actions in response to severe industry
cycle. Management reassesses these estimates at
the end of each reporting period.

At 31 December 2013, deferred tax assets of
HK$177,000 (2012: HK$1,458,000) in relation
to unused tax losses have been recognised in
the Group's consolidated statement of financial
position. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the remaining tax losses
of HK$65,831,000 (2012: HK$61,406,000) due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly
depends on whether sufficient future profits or
taxable temporary differences will be available in
the future. In cases where the actual future profits
generated are less or more than expected, a
material reversal or further recognition of deferred
tax assets may arise, which would be recognised
in the profit or loss for the period in which such a
reversal or further recognition takes place.
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Deferred income tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences and tax losses are
recognised when management considers it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. At 31 December 2013,
temporary differences relating to undistributed
profits of subsidiaries amounted to HK$6,807,000
(2012: HK$12,215,000). Deferred tax liabilities
have not been recognised in respect of the tax
that would be payable on the distribution of these
retained profits as the Company controls the
dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has
been determined that it is probable that these
profits will not be distributed in the foreseable
future.

Careful judgment by the Company’'s management
is applied when deciding whether the recognition
requirements for development costs have been
met. This is necessary as the economic success
of any product development is uncertain and
may be subject to future technical problems at
the time of recognition. Judgments are based on
the best information available at the end of each
reporting period. In addition, all internal activities
related to the development of new software,
products or knowhow are continuously monitored
by the Company’'s management.
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The Group's principal activities are disclosed in note 1 to
these financial statements. Turnover of the Group is the
revenue from these activities.

Revenue from external customers from the Group's
principal activities recognised during the year is as
follows:

Sales of gold and jewellery products EeURBEEMIEE
Franchise income SSEINEE PN
Enterprise software products ESRHER
Systems integration REEK
Professional services BERS

ASP services

Total revenue F AN

The executive directors, being the chief operating
decision maker, have identified the Group’s two product
and service lines as operating segments as further
described in note 2.23.

These operating segments are monitored and strategic
decisions are made on the basis of adjusted segment
operating results.
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Revenue
- From external customers

Reportable segment revenue

Reportable segment (loss)/profit before
income tax

Interest income

Depreciation and amortisation of non-financial
assets

Net loss on disposal/Written off of property,
plant and equipment

Fair value loss on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Reversal of provision for impairment of trade
receivables

Impairment loss on available-for-sale financial
assets

Written down of inventories

Finance costs

Reportable segment assets

Additions to non-current segment assets
(other than financial instruments and
deferred tax assets) during the year

Reportable segment liabilities
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Jewellery
Products
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HK$"000
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140,135
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317,101

8,318
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371,795

Total
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(5,599)
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(1,623)
(740)

582,815
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390,548
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for the year ended 31 December 2013 &£ —Z&—=

R R E R

F o= A S it S

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. PBEHE)
2012
“E-—F
Jewellery [T Products
Products and Services Total
BB
HEER Em MR @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT TAT
Revenue WA
- From external customers - KBNEER 1,775 349,105 350,880
Reportable segment revenue CES:VE: 1 ON 1,775 349,105 350,880
Reportable segment (loss)/profit before NBFERAT 25
income tax (E8),/ &7 (6,118) 42,580 36,462
Interest income FEME - 958 958
Depreciation and amortisation of nonfinancial ~ JF&REBEZ I EREH
assets (27) (4,746) (4,773)
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and HENE  BRRRE2FIE
equipment - 30,870 30,870
Gain on disposal of financial assets at fair value ~ HERAL BEFABREERZ SR
through profit or loss BE ME - 142 142
Fair value gain on financial assets at fair value AR EEABRKZLBEE
through profit or loss AR BERE - 1,006 1,006
Impairment loss on available-for-sale financial IRLESREE RERR
assets - (4,023) (4,023)
Impairment loss on goodwill HEZHERE - (1,140) (1,140)
Finance costs HBER - (295) (295)
Reportable segment assets AEHIBEE 268,892 347,291 616,183
Additions to non-current segment assets FRNABERENDEE
(other than financial instruments and (SRTARERRE
deferred tax assets) during the year BERN) 2,702 1,280 3,982
Reportable segment liabilities RS HEE 8,840 455,385 464,225

@ ANNUAL REPORT 2013 —=
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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for the year ended 31 December 2013 &£ —Z&—=

Fr—A=+—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued) 6.

The totals presented for the Group's operating segments
reconcile to the Group's key financial figures as
presented in the financial statements as follows:

DEEE2)

AEBZEENT25 2 BEREIF MK
P25 2 AREE BB IR BRI T

2013 2012

—EBE—=fF —E——fF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHETT

Reportable segment assets A2 BEE 582,815 616,183

Elimination of inter-segment receivables ¥4 (5 el X8 (224,803) (224,945)

Group assets rEBZEE 358,012 391,238

Reportable segment liabilities AEHHEEE 390,548 464,225

Elimination of inter-segment payables 5849 2B P 3R IE (224,803) (224,945)

Group liabilities rEECEE 165,745 239,280
e = *7¢£Ej‘x —=
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for the year ended 31 December 2013 &%

The Group's revenue from external customers and its
non-current assets (other than financial instruments
and deferred tax assets) are divided into the following
geographical areas:

Hong Kong BB
PRC and Taiwan A K A e
South East Asia B

B =l =

AEEZREINBEFPBAREIFREDE
E(EBTAMELERBEERIN IRT
S El 7

Revenue from

external customers

Non-current assets

REIMBEEZWA FREBEE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—= T -——F ZZE-—= —E——-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FA&TT FET TETT
138,297 136,878 1,464 3,578
431,052 205,406 13,688 8,990
10,031 8,596 111 65
579,380 350,880 15,263 12,633
K:; E —=F AEBRKAF 2

During 2013, HK$156,994,000 or 27.10% of the Group's
revenue depended on a single customer in the PRC and
Taiwan segment (2012: HK$155,218,000 or 44.46%). At
the end of the reporting period, 0.11% of the Group's
trade receivables was due from this customer (2012:
72.88%).

The Group has amended the format of management
information provided to the chief operating decision-
maker for the purpose of assessing the performance of
the operating segments due to the set up of subsidiaries
that are engaged in the provision of design and sales
of gold and jewellery products in late 2012, where such
subsidiaries has an insignificant impact to the Group's
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2012. As a result, the basis of segmentation has been
changed from geographical segment reporting in the
prior period to product and service segment reporting in
the current period.

56,994,000/ JT 827.10% J5 far %8 & £
&é@“%ZE %ﬁﬂ_:—_i
155,218,00078 JT 5444.46%) ° 1> 2 ¥R Hf
N %%ﬁﬁ$$l2ﬁ%?%$ =]
0.1M%(ZEF—=_4F :72.88%) °

AAR T — —FFERBIMFRER:
&%‘ﬁ%ﬁ*{éiﬂi%‘%;u%ZMFAT(sxﬁW

RAVWREAEBHE-_T——F+=
ﬁ7+ HIEFEZHERERBREAY
2) AEEDBIIHEEEERRETE
BREDIRBMANETEER 2B o
Ilﬂ: $H‘7ﬂ’\*ﬁ%‘>ﬁﬂﬁﬁiﬂ&ﬂﬁ?ﬂ§m@

DEEE BIRERLRBE 2

BEl o
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OTHER INCOME 7. EHfka
2013 2012
—E—-=fF —E——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FA&TT
Other revenue Hibplg A
Interest income F B U EE 936 958
Dividend income from listed IR AEES CRE
equity securities W= 850 122
Consultancy and management fee income EaRI & BB & U= 2,077 425
Others Ef 1,144 640
5,007 2,145
Other net income Hitm F8E
Fair value gain on financial assets at fair AR BETABZRZ S
value through profit or loss MEEs AR EENKE - 1,006
Net gain on disposal of property, plant HEYE  BEMEREZ
and equipment U - 30,870
Gain on disposal of financial assets at fair HEZ AR EEGAEZRE
value through profit or loss BB E W = 142
Reversal of provision for impairment of B E S EEFURERE 2
trade receivables o 9 -
9 32,018
5,016 34,163
FINANCE COSTS 8. WM¥EH
2013 2012
—E—=fF —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FHEIT
Interest charges on: AELTH
Other interest expense, wholly HEmF S -
repayable within five years ARAFAZHEER 740 295
— —T =FFH —
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for the year ended 31 December 2013 2 —FE—=F+—-A=+—HIFFZ

(Loss)/Profit before income tax is arrived at after

charging/(crediting):

Cost of inventories sold

Cost of services rendered*

Depreciation

Amortisation of development costs

Auditors’ remuneration

Net gain on disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Impairment loss on goodwill

Impairment loss on available-for-sale
financial assets

Written down of inventories

Net loss on disposal/Written off of
property, plant and equipment

Provision for impairment of trade
receivables

Fair value loss/(gain) on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Gain on disposal of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Reversal of provision for impairment of
trade receivables

Net exchange loss

Operating lease charges on land and
buildings

MBEAEHAT(BR) SRAMEHR (5

A
2013
—E-=F
HK$’000
FET
GFEHEENR 384,062
IR AR A 134,941
e 3,776
B A A 2 58 1,823
Z SR EN 5 1,210
HEME BMERREZ
el -
e 7 R EEE -
At EeREEZRE
=g 2,543
FE 2 MRk 1,623
HE FIHEDE  BEX
BB FEE 1,213
JE U 5 BR FOR B B
BRARBEFABERZ
CMEEZAREE
e (K 1,389
HERAREEFABGR
2 A E WS -
FEUNE ZERFURBEEE 2
B[O (9)
M 5,5 518 412
BT RIET &
e 10,016

* Cost of services rendered includes HK$113,071,000
(2012: HK$108,875,000) relating to staff costs, which
amount is also included in the total amounts disclosed in

note 13.

2012
—E-—F
HK$'000
FHIT
137,301
150,431
2,677
2,096
1,518

(30,870)
1,140

4,023

13

(1,006)

(142)

74

6,554

MRS AEHE 8 TAZAR113,071,000

EIL(—Z— "4 : 108,875,000/ 7T )
R TI A1 E 2 B EA -
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10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FRMAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% on the estimated assessable profits for the year.
Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

BENBREIRAFE 2 fhat BARDUS A
AT E16.5% EH B - BN BT IR
TRBFE AL ERBENIE A RE L
EBNBERNBRTHEAE -

2013 2012
—E—=fF —E——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Current tax BNEAT IR
- Hong Kong — &8
Current year KEE 99 -
- Overseas — gk
Current year KFEE 548 1,539
647 1,539
Deferred tax IEERIA
Current year KEE 800 (178)
Total income tax expense B85 1,447 1,361
e— T —FFH =
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for the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 —FE— =4+ _-HA=+—HILF/E

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting (loss)/
profit at applicable tax rates:

RERRERRERX kG (BR) )
MAEITHER

2013 2012
—EB-=fF —E——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#E T T
(Loss)/Profit before income tax MBS RAT(E518), (14,723) 36,462
Tax at the Hong Kong profits tax rate of & EFIEHFE16.5%
16.5% (2012: 16.5%) —ZT——%:165%)
HE 7 FIE (2,429) 6,016
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BARBRA Z BIEFE (170) (5,1563)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR 2 BIEE 1,295 3,690
Tax effect of unrecognised temporary REREREB2HBEGE
differences (92) 22
Tax effect of unrecognised tax losses RERBIBBE CHIATE 4,708 1,141
Utilisation of previously unrecognised F R R AR IBER
tax losses (722) (4,248)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries R Ef G EHER & 1E 2 B
operating in other jurisdictions REITRABE 2 F & (1,045) (246)
Others Ef (98) 139
Income tax expense FEHmx 1,447 1,361

Of the consolidated loss attributable to owners of
the Company of HK$14,091,000 (2012: profit of
HK$34,158,000), a loss of HK$38,658,000 (2012:
HK$5,594,000), which include a provision for impairment
of amounts due from subsidiaries of HK$32,614,000
(2012: HK$NIl), which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

NAEHEAE ARG A B8 /A14,091,000
B(=ZF — = F : m 734,158,000
TL) 0 BEER AR R B RE KGR
2 &5 1838,658,0008 ji( = T — — F ¢
5,694,000/ T) + EH BIEEKHB A A
FOB Z B EEE32,614,0008 0(—F——
FEEIL) o
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Fr—A=+—HIFE

12.

13.

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings
per share is based on the loss attributable to owners
of the Company of HK$14,091,000 (2012: profit of
HK$34,158,000) and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of approximately 1,144,751,000 (2012:
1,015,050,000) in issue during the year.

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share for the years ended
31 December 2013 and 2012 equate the basic (loss)/
earnings per share as there is no potential dilutive
ordinary share in existence during the year.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
(including directors’ emoluments)

12.

13.

SER(ER) 2%

BREAREE (BB) BF IR
KARHEB AELEE14,091,000%
T (ZE—Z=F :%734,158,000%
o) R 491,144,751,000) (=& ——
% :1,015,050,000/%) FASEITLER
BBz LB E -

HREE-ZE—=Fk=-F—=-F+=-A
=t+—HBUEFEATEBEEE, LR
B - wEREE(BR) BIBESERER
BEAR(E8),/&BF -

Wages, salaries and other benefits
Pension costs — defined contribution
plans

i

101

TE - FrakEMERN
BARERAR—E B G E

T——FFR =2

EERFIAZ(BEEETHH)
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
135,842 124,389
12,451 10,808
148,293 135,197
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for the year ended 31 December 2013 &

Z2_F—

ZF+_A=+—HUFE

14. DIRECTORS"’

REMUNERATION

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S

14. EFEMeRSREEASTHH

@& ANNUAL REPORT 2013 —=2

EMOLUMENTS
14.1 Directors’ emoluments 14.1 EEHMH
Contributions
Salaries to defined
Directors’ and Benefit-  contribution
fees allowances in-kind plan Total
ERER
EZhe HERER EURR HE LS ok
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
iz ThEL TEL Thn TEL TAL
2013 ~E-=%
Executive directors: HrEs:
Li Xia 38 - 600 - - 600
Lin Di Wil - 480 - - 480
Chen Yin R= - 456 = = 456
Yip Tin Hung EX - 360 - - 360
Zee Chan Mei Chu, Peggy  RIRXIR (a) - 1,567 - 5 1572
Independent non-executive BIXHTES
directors:
Lam Tin Faat MHRE - 180 - - 180
Lu Haina i3} - 120 - - 120
Fu Ping Man A - 120 - - 120
- 3,883 - 5 3,888
2012 —E--F
Executive directors: HITES !
Li Xia 2E - 140 - - 140
Lin Di il - 120 - - 120
Chen Yin = - 116 - - 116
Yip Tin Hung X - 180 - - 180
Zee Chan Mei Chu, Peggy  BEE% - 1,000 245 14 1,259
Fung Din Chung, Rickie it L) - 600 - 6 606
Leung Lucy, Michele e 3 (o) - 500 101 6 607
Ng Wai King, Steve RiEE (o) - 500 - 6 506
Non-executive director: EEakiy £
Ip Tak Chuen, Edmond 2R (o) - - - - -
Independent non-executive BUFHITEE:
directors:
Lam Tin Faat WR% 90 - - - 90
Lu Haina 515 60 - - - 60
Fu Ping Man B 60 - - - 60
Cheong Ying Chew, Henry ~ REEH b) 50 - - - 50
Chang Ka Mun FRH (b) 50 - - - 50
Wong Mee Chun EEL b) 50 - - - 50
360 3,156 346 32 3,894
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Notes:
(a) Resigned on 30 April 2013

(b) Resigned on 3 July 2012

Benefit-in-kind represents the estimated rateable
value of residential accommodation in respect of
properties owned by the Group and occupied by
two executive directors of the Company.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office
during the year (2012: HKS$Nil).

There were no arrangements under which
a director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year (2012: HK$Nil).

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year included three
(2012: one) existing directors and one resigned
director (2012: three) whose emoluments are
fully/partly reflected in the analysis presented
above. The emoluments payable to the remaining
one (2012: one) individual during the year and
the emoluments of the resigned director for the
period from 1 May 2013 to 31 December 2013 are
as follows:

Salaries and allowances and
benefit-in-kind

Contributions to defined TEREHFRET B

contribution plan

e RRREDN S

B EE
@ RoE-=FmMAStAEE
b ReE—— &t A=HEA

EVNBEEARAMERITESMN
ERAEERBE 2 EFEWE 2
fEREMAE -

FAN - AN B A E 2R S B
ERMAREE R MAREE R Z
BRI ERBERAE( T ——F

T -

FRYBEEENELREREEM
FM o 2B (T ——F: ) °

FAN - AEEREATERTFMHMALE
B=%2(ZF—=—F: —R)REE
ER—F(ZE—ZF : ZR)EHE
B BEZEHBOFMR L
TRk - g T —R(ZT—=
F: —R)EaHALTRFERNRZE
FTEEN - T—=FRA—HBEE
- ZF+-A=t—HILHE
ZEBIT

2013 2012
—E—=£ —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F& T T
2,333 2,800

25 36

2,358 2,836
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for the year ended 31 December 2013 2 —FE—=F+—-A=+—HIFFZ

14. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 14  E5SMe&RSREBRARTHM

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S (%)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
14.2 Five highest paid individuals (Continued) 142 EEEETMALE)
The emoluments fell within the following band: HENNT AT &R -
Number of individuals*
BT AH*
2013 2012
—EB-=F —E—_F
Emolument band E= e
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 0% 1,500,000/ 7T 1 4
HK$1,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 1,500,001 5% 3,000,00075 7T 1 -
* Including the resigned director during the year * HE-T—=F+=A=+—
ended 31 December 2013 (2012: three). HIEFEBEZHEESR(ZZ
——FE:ZH)e

@& ANNUAL REPORT 2013 —=2
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for the year ended 31 December 2013 &2 —F—=F+_-H=1+—HIFFE

At 1 January 2012

Cost

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2012

Opening net hook amount
Exchange differences
Additions
Disposalsfwritten off
Depreciation

Closing net hook amount

At 31 December 2012 and
1 January 2013

Cost
Accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2013

Opening net hook amount
Reclassification

Exchange differences
Additions
Disposalsfwritten off
Depreciation

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2013
Cost

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses

Net book amount

R-F-ZF-A-H
R

SitTER
HEER

BEFE

BE-E--E4C5
St-BLFE
ENSEEE
EiEE

R

HE /i

it

EXEEFE

RZB-Z%+ZR
Zt-AR-%
—ZE-§-f

A

EiTER
HESE

RERE

HE-E-=F+2f
St-ALEE

ERAHE

EXipL

EiEE

AE
e /i
ik

ERREFE

SiTER
HERR

RERFE

Leasehold
land and
buildings

1g
iR
BEN
HK$'000
TR

7,856
2,038)

5818

Leasehold
improvements

il

UES
HK$'000

AR
4,834
(4,439)

445

445
1,245

(249)
(119)

1324

5,454
(4,130)

1,324

1,324
42
3411

(1.222)
(613)

3,008

1510
(4,562)

3,008

Computer
and office
equipment
EHR
BAE
B
HK$'000
TEx
28935
(20,806

8129

8129
65
1,422

2.391)

7,225

29,136
(21,911)

1225

(2,434)

6,226

30,959
(24,733)

6,226

ASP
software
EREH
e
G
HK$'000
FiEr
7187
(7,187)

1181
(1.187)

Furniture
and fixtures

R
%8
HK$ 000
TR
1377
(1,223)

2,163
(1.274)

889

889
30
25

4,219

(547)

4,613

6,421
(1,814)

4,613

Motor
vehicles

nE
HK$'000
TEn

632
(622

1,120
(558)

562

562

17
209

(185)

606

1,351
(745)

606

Total

3]
HK$'000
AR

50,871
(36,215)

14,656

14,656
69
3,982
(6,030)
(2,677)

10,000

45,060
(35,060)

10,000

10,000
264
9,222

(1,257)
(3,776)

14,453

46,307
(31,854)

14,453
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Unlisted shares, at cost of
United States Dollars (“US$") 2

(2012: US$2)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December

2013 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

WEAREHE

Excel (BVI) Limited

Excel China Investment (BVI)
Limited
ERTERERRAR

Excel Consulting and
Solutions Sdn. Bhd.

Excel Global IT Services
Holdings Limited

Excel Global IT Services (HK)
Limited

TENEME(BR)BRAT]

Place of
incorporation/
registration

AL E

British Virgin
Islands*

RERKES

British Virgin
Islands*

RBRIES

Malaysia*

SRAE

British Virgin
Islands*

RBRIES

Hong Kong*

BB

JE TR - R AE
2% (%))
—E——F :2%5)

Place of
operations

EESE

Hong Kong

&b

Hong Kong

36

Malaysia

N

Hong Kong

EE

Hong Kong

30

2013
—E—=F
HK$'000
FET

2012
= —

—= .

HK$'000
TiETT

R-ZE—=F+_A=+—"H TEWE
NE|ZFHBWOT ¢

Nominal value

of issued

share capital/
registered capital
2RT
RAEE/
SEE

5,000 shares of
US$1 each
5,000k ERAEE
[EA<)

5,000 shares of
US$1 each
5,000 BREE
(Ewd) 3l

100,000 shares of
Malaysian Ringgit
("MYR") 1 each

100,000 S EE
SREzR(5%])
12 Rt

500,000 shares of
US$1 each
500,0000% &k EE
(ESWa) ()

10,000 shares of
HK$1 each

10,0000 R EE
A<l

Percentage of
issued share
capital/registered
capital held by
the Company
KRAREE
BRTRE /G
EXZERL

100%*

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activities

TEEHR

Investment holding

BEER

Investment holding

REEK

Development
of computer
software and
provision of sale
and marketing
services

FEERERMR
REUHE RS
RS

Investment holding

REER

Provision of
professional
services

REERR
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Name of subsidiary

WELARBE
Excel Investment China

Limited
TERETEBRAF

Excel International Limited

Excel SSL Investment Limited
EBRRLBRERRAR
Excel System (Hong Kong)

Limited
FREF(BE)ERAF

Excel System Limited

Excel Technology
International (BVI) Limited

Excel Technology
International (Hong Kong)
Limited

TEMEER (B8 ) BRAA

Excelink Development
Corporation

TEERERAT

Place of
incorporation/
registration

AR B
Hong Kong*

&g

Hong Kong*

O

Hong Kong*

B

Hong Kong*

B

British Virgin
Islands*

RERIES

British Virgin
Islands*

RBRIES

Hong Kong*

British Virgin
Islands*

RBEIES

Place of
operations

B
Hong Kong

BB

Hong Kong

Hong Kong
0

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong

BB

Hong Kong

&R

Hong Kong

Hong Kong
B

Nominal value

of issued

share capital/
registered capital
BET

BAaEE/
SHEX

1,000 shares of
HK$1 each
1,000 EHREE
18T R

10,000 shares of
HK$1 each
10,000 R EE
Diyrd <l

1,000 shares of
HK$1 each
1,000 ERAE
cyrd )

200,000 shares of
HK$1 each
200,000/ B EE
18T’

100 shares of
US$1 each
100 EREE
[Ed <)

1 share of
US$1 each
1REE
[E4 <)

1,000 shares of
HK$1 each

1,000 Z R EE
18T Bin

10,000 shares of
US$1 each
10,000 B R EE
(E%d'3)

Percentage of
issued share
capital/registered
capital held by
the Company
NG
BRITRA
BRZEMN

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activities

TEER
Investment holding

BEER

Inactive

LEEES

n

Investment holding

REEK

Systems integration

ZREMN

Inactive

e

=

Investment holding

RERR

Development
of computer
software, systems
integration and
provision of
maintenance
services

REEREMN - 245
ERRRREER
%

Investment holding

REER
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Name of subsidiary

WEARERE

Excelink Technology Pte Ltd.

Hong Kong Jewellery Co.,

Limited
EAREERAA

HR21 Holdings Limited

HR21 Limited

i21 Limited

Infostar Ltd.

World Sky International

Limited
tREBRERAF

Wise Success Ltd.

Place of
incorporation/
registration

CALAAEE

Singapore*

Hn

Hong Kong*
BR*
British Virgin

Islands*

RBRIES

Hong Kong*

Eg

Hong Kong*

&g

British Virgin
slands*

ERELEE

British Virgin
Islands*

RBRIES

British Virgin
Islands*

RBRIES

Place of
operations

EESE

Singapore

s

Hong Kong

30

Hong Kong
Bk

Hong Kong

&

Hong Kong
0

Hong Kong

B0

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
6

Nominal value

of issued

share capital/
registered capital
BRT
RAHEE

T &R

Singapore Dollar
("S$")893,022

AT
(T#rmsE))
893,0227C

1 share of
HK$1 each
1REE
1782 Bin

50,000 shares of
US$1 each
50,000 FREE
1% D

2 shares of
HK$1 each

2RERAE
1B B

14,000 shares of
HK$1 each
14,000 BRE A
By

1 share of
US$1 each
1REE
[Ed <)

1 share of
US$1 each
1REE
152 lin

5,000 shares of
US$1 each
5,000 BREE
(Ewd 3

Percentage of
issued share
capital/registered
capital held by
the Company
KAARE
BRITRA /M
EXZEDL

100%

100%

93%

93%

80.1%

100%

100%"

100%

Principal activities

FEEH

Development
of computer
software and
provision of sale
and marketing
services

GBS N
HERTHHER
%

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REEK

Development
of computer
software and
provision of
maintenance
services

RSB R
RERS

Inactive

LEEE

I

Investment holding

RARK

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER
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Name of subsidiary

MELFER

IREERENRARLA

eEARE(RINERAA

RITEBEAERZGAR

N

TR (RN ERDE]

SEA SRR (LR ER

AR

SEAERRMN)BR D]

Place of
incorporation/
registration

BV R L]

PRC*%*

I:F***

PRC**

q;]**

PRC***

;F***

PRC**

I;P**

PRC**

qq**

PRC**

[P**

Place of
operations

EEE

PRC

TE

PRC

T

PRC

RE

PRC

T

PRC

PE

PRC

RE

Nominal value

of issued

share capital/
registered capital
BRfT
RAEE/
HfER

US$2,200,000

2,200,000% 7T

HK$87,000,000

87,000,000 70

Renminbi ("RMB")
6,000,000

ARB(TAR%])
6,000,0007C

HK$3,000,000

3,000,000

US$350,000

350,000% T

US$70,000

70,000% 7T

Percentage of
issued share
capital/registered
capital held by the
Company
NG
BRTRA /R
EAZEA

65%

100%

66%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activities

IRER

Systems integration,
development of
computer software
and provision
of maintenance
services

ZOEK  REEK
B RRERER
%

Design and sales of
gold and jewellery
products

Rt RHEREHE

Em

Development of
computer software
and provision
of maintenance
services

R BRE T R
RERE

Development of
computer software
and provision
of maintenance
services

FEE R R
RERH

Provision of
professional
services and
systems
integration

RESZRBR
RIEEK

Provision of
professional
services

REEXRE
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Place of
incorporation/ Place of
Name of subsidiary registration operations
WEAR AR B3V M8 L] RS
HIEARBROBRAF Taiwan* Taiwan
N L33
(=N H/S
FEAER SRR PRC** PRC
HLERAT
i il
# Issued capital held directly by the Company
* Limited liability company
*x Wholly-owned foreign enterprise

*xrx Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise

Nominal value
of issued
share capital/

Percentage of
issued share
capital/registered
capital held by

registered capital the Company  Principal activities
BEfT NG
RAEE/ EBRIRE/EH
SfER ERzEL IEER
New Taiwan 100%  Provision of
Dollar ("NT$") professional
11,913,620 services
11,913,62057 & % REZZRE
([#&%])

RMB10,000,000 100%  Provision of IT and
related supporting
services for the
banking industry
in PRC

ARE RRERITERRM
10,000,007 BB R AE
R
# RAREZEFAREITRA
* BRAA]
*¥ HINEBERE
= RINEERMEE

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in a list of excessive length.

ERINRZARBINBERR - NEERR
HEAKEFAREE IR ELBAN
SEFEECEZAN EEZTRRIEHE
M B AR B R ERIRARTTE -
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The following table lists out the information relating to
i21 Limited, HR21 Limited and 3t BB EERHT AR A A,
the subsidiaries of the Group, which have material non-
controlling interests (“NCI”). The summarised financial
information presented below represents the amounts
before any inter-company elimination.

TREY A EBEN B R FI21 Limited
HR21 Limited Rt REBRER T BRA
RIZHBEER  ZFARHEEAIEER
e ([ AR ) - TR BHE R
MERETATIBEHE S5 -

2013 2012
—E-=F —E-—fF
L REE Bl
i21 HR21 HERK i21 HR21 HERE
Limited Limited ARAF Limited Limited BRAF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FEr FEx FEx TEL  FEL  TEL
NCI percentage EEREZA DL 19.9% 7% 35%  19.9% 7% 35%
Current assets TENEE 815 15,763 130,055 811 13,203 216,006
Non-current assets FERBEE - 63 4,887 9 139 5,837
Current liabilities ik I)=R (42,962) (16,011) (113,016) (43,094) (13,682) (193,425)
Net (liabilities)/assets (BfE)/BEFE (42,147) (185) 21,926  (42,274) (340) 28,418
Carrying amount of NCI IEER R REE (2,143) 441 7,675  (2,168) 430 9,947
Revenue WA - 6,222 200,970 138 5,786 179,537
Profit/(Loss) for the year FREF (BE) 127 155  (6,492) (108) (354) 4,062
Total comprehensive 2EEA (BE)
income/(loss) i 127 155  (6,492) (108) (354) 4,062
Profit/(Loss) allocated to NCI SEZIERERY
wF,/(E18) 25 1M (2,272) (21) (25) 1,422
Dividend paid to NCI BRFFERERRE - = - - - _
Cash flows from/(used in) REEBEL/
operating activities (BR)zReRE 2 90 54,754 64 796 (115,770)
Cash flows used in REZHMEAZ
investing activities HenRE - - (1,255) - (26) (116)
Cash flows (used in)/from REEBF(EBH),/
financing activities EEZESRE - - (53,082) - - 105,406
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Unlisted private equity fund, at FELEMILAREES - &
fair value less impairment losses N BEIRBEEE

Unlisted equity investments, at cost FEEMIRARE - LA
less impairment losses MERRERE

The unlisted private equity fund principally invests in high
growth technology industries and is held for long-term
strategic purposes. Impairment loss of HK$2,543,000
(2012: HK$123,000) for the unlisted private equity fund
was provided because the directors are of the opinion
that the amount is uncollectable as the fund has been
put into liquidation in late 2013. The impairment loss
of HK$2,543,000 is included in “Other expenses” in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

The unlisted equity investments with carrying amount
of HK$Nil (2012: HKS$Nil) were measured at cost less
impairment losses as they do not have quoted market
prices in active markets and the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is so significant that the directors are
of the opinion that their fair value cannot be measured
reliably. The unlisted equity investments are engaged in
the provision of credit facilities.

2013 2012
—EBE—=fF —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T T

- 2,543

- 2,543

FEMAAREESFTERERNFEER
RiT%  EARBEBRMEBOMEBE - @
REZIELETAABREESGR T —=FF
RETER  EFRAZSEEZRME -
M IELETMAABRZEESHIRAEEE
2,543,000/ ;o( =& — = 4F : 123,000/
JT) ° RIEE182,543,00058 LAt AR A 1B
mhEMEERERZ[EMAT A -

FEHEASATL(ZE—ZF : T8 L)2
IE_E TR AN E THIR A AR IR BB B 1R A
£ RERZEREVEIRTHRE
URESEQAAEBEMGHBERERE  AH
BEERAERNABETE TS - IF
ETRARE TS IR EERE 2 ¥
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18. GOODWILL - GROUP 18. B8 —ZxKH
The net carrying amount of goodwill can be analysed as BEEREmEEZOMAT ¢
follows:
2013 2012
—E-=fF —ET——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
At the beginning of year REL])
Gross carrying amount BERTAI(E 15,853 15,853
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE (15,853) (14,713)
= 1,140
Net carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEmFE = 1,140
Impairment loss FEEE - (1,140)
Net carrying amount at 31 December RT+_A=+—HZ2EEmFE - -
At the end of year RER
Gross carrying amount BERTEE 15,853 15,853
Accumulated impairment ES R (15,853) (15,853)

The carrying amount of goodwill, net of any impairment
loss, is allocated to the following cash generating unit:

MR ERRE  BEZEREESEET
IR ELEN

2013 2012
—E-=F —E—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#E T FHIT

Provision of professional services
in the PRC in the IT Products and
Services

ERBERLE MR ER &

RIS IR L B 5 IR 75

TS —-

113
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The recoverable amounts of the goodwill relating to
the provision of professional services in the PRC in IT
Products and Services stated above were determined
based on value in use calculations covering a detailed
three-year budget plan, and at a discount rate of 5%
(2012: 5%). Cash flows for the three-year period (2012:
three-year) were extrapolated without using a growth
rate in considering contracts obtained by the companies
and economic conditions of the market. The estimated
growth rate used is comparable to the growth rate for
the industry. Management determined the budgeted
gross margin on the basis of past performance and its
expectation for market development.

For the provision of professional services in the PRC,
management believes that any reasonably foreseeable
change in any of the above key assumptions would not
cause the aggregate carrying amount of the goodwill to
exceed its aggregate recoverable amounts.

Apart from the considerations described in determining
the value in use of the cash-generating units above, the
Group’s management is not currently aware of any other
probable changes that would necessitate changes in its
key estimates.

B P e B B AR E m M R PR R
EXRBEHIBEZANKLOSRE - IR
EREEAESH  BBRX[E% (ZF—
ZF :5%) WHEFL =FBEE
METE - REBARARMFZAENRTS
RERRE > ZF(ZF—ZF: =ZF)F
Bl e RMEY BRAIE R RHAELH - AT
Rz RERETRERERES - B
EREATXENNEEMHEERZAY
BEEEEEME -

HRETBREHEXRS  EEEMEE
MEBLATERRZAERAREEHH
TeEymEsREAERBETKREE
TR

B RS A B EAEE
BN AR EE R RN AR MR
EREBRRU AT R ALED -
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At 1 January
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December
Opening net book amount
Amortisation charge
Exchange differences

Closing net book amount

At 31 December
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net book amount

R—A—H
DN
Rt

AREDHE

ZFT A= HIEFE

2013
—E-=F
HK$'000
FTET

37,376
(34,743)

2,633

BE+-A=t—HILEE

REA 2 BREHE

HIHE R
PE N ERE

RERZ REFE

R+=RA=t+—H

DN
RETHH

BREFE

The development costs represented all direct costs
incurred in the development of enterprise software
products. The amortisation charge for the year is included
in “depreciation and amortisation” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income.

2,633
(1,823)

810

37,376

(36,566)

810

2012
—E-—F
HK$'000
FHET

37,380
(32,643)

4,737

4,737
(2,096)

2,633

37,376

(34,743)

2,633

B ANERBECREEERMMES 2P
BEERAN - FRAZEBHERDBERE
EHEEMEMEERERT ZIITE NS

1A e
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The analysis of the Group’s amounts receivable under
finance leases is as follows:

Total minimum lease payments: BRIEAEHAEE

Due within one year —F £ B

Unearned finance income FERELZ B E WA

Present value of minimum lease =EHEERE
payments

Present value of minimum REAERELT :
lease payments:

Due within one year — 4 £ B

Less: portion due within one year o —FEREEIN S

included under current assets BEZEHMHN
Non-current portion included WAIERBIEE 2 IE

under non-current assets

The Group has entered into finance leasing arrangements
for certain items of its computer equipment. The average
term of finance leases entered into is 4 years. There are
no unguaranteed residual values of assets leased under
finance leases at the end of the reporting period.

Finance lease receivable balances are secured over the
computer equipment leased. The Group is not permitted
to sell or re-pledge the collateral in the absence of
default by the lessee.

Jewellery Products KREEM

Raw materials RHR

Work in progress R m

Finished goods RURK fh

IT Products and Services BN ERRRE
Finished goods RURK i

Total F

AEEREHEREFEZ O

2013 2012
—E—=fF —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET T

- 203
= (16)

- 187

- 187
- (187)

mEER D

AEEFZ TEBAEEMRREETERZ
BEMEHZ - FHOREHEH/ME -
RERPR  HEREREREHEHLZE
EBRERFAREE -

BB G EYGRIEUE H A B R B IERE
R o REBNFEABRARE R ERE
hE S BRI ZE AR -

2013 2012
—EBE—=£F —T—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F& T T
1,147 13,918
1,288 11,454
48,494 -
50,929 25,372
64,236 22,625
115,165 47,997
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Written down of inventories amounted to approximately
HK$1,623,000 (2012: HK$Nil) was provided for the year
ended 31 December 2013.

Amounts due from customers for contract work
represent the excess of the value of work performed
over the amount of billing issued to customers.

Amounts due to customers for contract work represents
the excess of billing over the value of work performed
and the amounts received from customers before the
related services have been rendered.

ZFT A= HIEFE

HE_Z—=F+_A=+—HIEFEE "
FEZ MR 51,623,000 (=T —=

£ 3/%7E)

Bl EFANTREFARDETIRERE
EREMNEPELZRESHEIER -

ENEFPAEHNIRFEERESERIND
ETTIZEE  RREHEEBRBIIZ RS

FZe®E8 -

Contracts in progress at the end of the REHBRZEITHELN :

reporting period:

Estimated contract costs plus recognised i st& 496K Z 1N E FESR 55 FA

profits less recognised losses B R E S
Less: progress billings o EERESE

Analysed for reporting purposes as: B -

Amounts due from customers for EWEPAEHITERIE
contract work
Amounts due to customers for ENEFA4)TIEFIE

contract work

All the amounts included in amounts due are expected
to be billed and (credited)/recovered to the profit or loss
within one year.

2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
198,015 147,785
(165,984) (106,929)
32,031 40,856
41,394 53,120
(9,363) (12,264)
32,031 40,856

AEARY BN 2R - RSN —

FABHKRERGIA), HEER

%o
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Trade receivables EWE SR
From third parties £=5
From a related party —Z R

Less: provision for impairment
of receivables

Trade receivables from third parties for IT products and
services are due within 14 days to 60 days from the
date of billing. Trade receivable from a related party is
repayable on demand. Debtors with balances that are
more than 90 days overdue are requested to settle all
outstanding balances before any further credit is granted.

The Group's sales of gold and jewellery products
comprised mainly cash sales and credit card sales to
retail customers and credit sales to franchisees with 0 -
60 days credit terms.

The directors of the Group considered that the fair values
of trade receivables are not materially different from their
carrying amounts because these balances have short
maturity periods at their inception. All trade receivables
are expected to be recovered within one year.

Based on the invoice dates, the ageing analysis of the
trade receivables was as follows:

== A i S

B UGB BB R

2013 2012
—E-=F —T—F
HK$000 HK$'000
FE T FHIT
34,884 134,997
1,197 3,808
36,081 138,805
(191) (197)
35,890 138,608

BAMREMEREZEBRE=ZTT2ES
ERRREERAES THAERTRARE

Hlo el —mBEAB T 2B Bk

e

AR ER

BE - e N+ R ZEBWE SRR
HRECEEEEZNREEERRTAIBRD

E—FEE-

AEEZESHREEMHETERREAT
EXPZREHERERRHEE  URkA
FAAMBEE 2 EEHE  FEHATER
+H-

AEBMEFTA/RLFEFEREHRRER
BRWEZER AR EBEEEREEL
BEAEZR - TARKEZRFIEHHR
—FRYRE -

BREEAS  RKESERZEBRHH
T :

2013 2012

—E—= —E——4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FA&TT

0 - 30 days 0-30H 30,406 110,304
31 - 60 days 31 - 60H 2,565 16,132
61 — 90 days 61 - 90H 1,764 1,627
Over 90 days HiE90 H 1,155 10,545

35,890

138,608
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At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
receivables for evidence of impairment on both an
individual and collective basis. The amount of impairment
loss of impaired receivables, if any, is recognised based
on the credit history of the customer, whether the

REHHR - AERESH ERFAEREDR
REERR  NEERSARERRE - @
BURE 2 BEKA(IMAE ) 2 REEBES
B BREEFzEAREK(MEFEEIER
BN #E e B B R SECRBEAN A 30 &

customer is experiencing financial difficulties and was in
default or delinquency of payments, and current market

conditions.

The movement in the provision for impairment of trade

receivables is as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year REY 2 HEE

Impairment loss recognised BEHERBEEE

Amount written off during the year FAMBE 258

Reversal of provision for REEBERE B
impairment losses

Exchange differences e H Z5E

Balance at the end of the year RERZ HEE

The ageing analysis of the Group's trade receivables

based on due date is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired AR BTN R (A
1 — 90 days past due #HER1 - 90H
Over 90 days past due B HAFR 90 H

MHHENER

FEW E SRR ER A 2 2B T

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TFET
197 284

- 13

- (101)

(9) -

3 1

191 197

REME  AEBERKE SRR Rk

HranTs
2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THETT
30,166 111,084
5,640 21,765
84 5,759
35,890 138,608
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As at 31 December 2013, trade receivables that were
neither past due nor impaired related to a large number
of diversified customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired
related to a large number of diversified customers that
had a good track record of credit with the Group. Based
on past credit history, management believe that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered to be
fully recoverable. The Group did not hold any collateral in
respect of trade receivables past due but not impaired.

Other receivables E b e U F0R

Deposits e

Amount due from avaliable-for-sale FEM AT E S
financial assets BENIA

Prepayments TERTRIE

The amount due from available-for-sale financial assets
of HK$8,223,000 (2012: HK$Nil), which is unsecured,
interest bearing at 12% per annum and, repayable within
1 year from the end of the reporting period. During
the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group accrued
interest income of HK$554,000 for the amount due from
available-for-sale financial assets.

The directors of the Group considered that the fair
values of other receivables, deposits and prepayments
and amount due from available-for-sale financial assets
are not materially different from their carrying amounts
because these balances have short maturity periods on
their inception.

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Group has not
determined any other receivables as individually impaired
and no specific allowance for doubtful debts was
recognised.

R_ZT—=F+_A=+—H " K@HI
EREZEKE SRR N RkEREH
BRPEHZTRBEZES °

ERHEEREZERKE SRR FRE
ARAEEBRIFEEREZARERZ
EP -REBECEETE  EEEMRE
BOERULFERTRBERE  REAR
EEERYVESAZL  BERDERS
A] 2 B (m o AN SR [ 4 L A 1B SR
B2 EWE 5 R A EE R

2013 2012
—E-=fF —F——fF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
THET T
8,031 1,352
2,150 1,933
8,777 -
32,068 37,873
51,026 41,158

FEUL AT H & € Bh & E 7VIAS,223,000/8 7T
(ZZ2—=—%F  TF) BEER - REF
K12%:T 8 BEAREBERBRE—FNK
BEg NEE-_Z—=F+-A=+—H
HFE AEERERIHEESSREE
2 FRIETEIRF] B U A 554,000/ 7T ©

AEEEERAERILFFA/ERK
R MEMBYWIE - e ANFRIER
EURAIHEESREERRZANBER
HEMELIEEAER -

RZE—=FR_F——F+-_RA=+—
B ANEBWRETEMNAEERBIREZ
Hib iz - B ERERIEL SRR
R o
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25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 25 BAOoRRERABEESERZEM

26.

27.

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS - GROUP SE-X5EE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Listed equity securities at fair value held 1ZARBEKEERZ
for trading: R ARES
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong BB T2 RAES 26,602 5,151

The fair value of the Group’s investments in listed equity
securities has been measured as described in note 39.7.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) 26.
SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. Included in the amounts due

from subsidiaries is a provision for impairment of

HK$232,762,000 (2012: HK$200,148,000). The carrying
amount of the amounts due approximates its fair value.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - 27.
GROUP AND COMPANY

AEER EMBRABEZZREZAAEE
THRERMEE39.751 & -

FEly, (FER)MEBATRIE—
FAH

ZEFNEAREERA REUHERERE
E-BUNBARNRERERERE
232,762,000/ 70( —Z——4F : 200,148,000
BIL) o REFIE L EEEEE AR EER

o

Eo

BeRieERY-—*KEHE
F 0T

Group Company
TEE VNG
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=f —E—=-f ZB-=Ff ZIZT—=F

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FHT FTHT FET

Bank balances and cash RITEFEESE 71,355 87,763 543 5,528
e T =-FFH —=2

121
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Included in bank balances and cash of the Group is
HK$26,152,000 (2012: HK$17,502,000) of bank balances
denominated in RMB placed with banks in the PRC and
bear interest at an effective interest rate of approximately
0.41% (2012: 1.15%) per annum. RMB is not a freely
convertible currency. Under the Mainland China’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement and Sales and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for foreign currencies through banks that are authorised
to conduct foreign exchange business.

Included in bank balances and cash of the Group is
HK$6,215,000 (2012: HK$5,285,000) of bank balances
denominated in MYR placed with banks in Malaysia and
bear interest at an effective interest rate of approximately
1.31% (2012: 1.76%) per annum. In Malaysia, the Group
is permitted to exchange MYR into foreign currencies.

The Group was granted by its third parties suppliers
credit periods ranging from 30 — 60 days. Trade payable
from a related party is repayable on demand. Based
on the invoice dates, the ageing analysis of the trade
payables were as follows:

0 - 30 days 0-30H

31 - 60 days 31 - 60H
61 — 90 days 61 - 90H
Over 90 days HB3®90H

All amounts are short term and hence the carrying values
of trade payables are considered to be a reasonable
approximation of its fair value.

AEE 2 RITFHKLIAE B1E26,152,000
BIT(ZZ— 4 17,502,000/ 7T) A1F
BARBEEARITUAAREE  REE
FREL0.41% (ZF— -4 : 1.15%) 5t
BZROIGTER - AREATAIERLRE
B o IR IR B i 2 HNE KR E AR &
HIE - EERIERIRT - NEB ] E
B IBER T HETTINE B IR ER 2 RITHA
ARBHBAHME -

REBE 2 RITHFER MRS B1E6,215,000%
TT(ZF— % : 5,285,000/ 70 ) BFHRN
BRI NIRIT A BB E  HERF
FEHM131% (ZFE——5F :1.76%)5t 5
ZIRITIER - AEBEEENERATRER
15 55 M i BN o

FZTHERGTAKEZEERNT=
THERTH - BN —RBEBHIZE 55K
RARERER - REEXZAY BHE
DI Z BRI AT -

2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F& T T
20,293 16,112
5,615 10,766

- 11,346

24,521 34,903
50,429 73,127

PrAECHEBEHNE  URRENESK
RZEHEREARBEZABENOH -
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29.

30.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED 29. EfthEfI A RFARERH — &

CHARGES - GROUP &8
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT

Deferred income EIEWA 16,638 19,023

Deposits from customers and franchisees RKEBF MEFFINBEEm LS 4,794 -

Other payables HAth FET IR 7,022 6,387

Accrued charges JEIRE M 18,510 15,066

46,964 40,476

All'amounts are short term and hence the carrying values FrEcEBSME W2 AEMEMNR

of other payables and accrued charges are considered to EREREACEEEAEAABHEYS

be a reasonable approximation of its fair value. B A o

BORROWINGS - GROUP 30. g —ZXx5£H

2013 2012

—E—=F —E——fF

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
PtEE FET FAT

Borrowings BE

— A third party ——HRE=H (a) 3,619 -

- A related party (note 36) — — %R T7 (FI5E36) (b) 52,324 111,374

55,943 111,374

(@) The loan borrowed from a third party is unsecured, (a) RE—RBEZFZERAEER-
interest bearing at 12% per annum and repayable BEME12%TERBEE2WAR
within 1 year from the end of the reporting period. RET—FAEE -

(0)  The loan borrowed from a related party is (b) RE—BBEBMICERSEER -
unsecured, interest-free and repayable within BB NRBEEERPRET @A
twelve months from the end of the reporting NEE - %@ H ARAEE —H
period. The related party is a company which is BB A Rl 2 — & IE R AR AR 3R AT
controlled by a non-controlling shareholder of a /NG
subsidiary of the Group.

The carrying amounts of the amounts due approximate ZERE FRAEEEAREEES -

their fair values.

TS —
123
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Deferred taxation is calculated on temporary differences
under the liability method using a principal taxation rate
of 16.5% (2012: 16.5%) for Hong Kong entities and
25% on the PRC entities in the Group at the end of the
reporting period.

The movement during the year in the deferred tax assets
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position is as follows:

FEEFRIBIIRERBABIEE BERAE
BrBABRTHEED T RERIR
FEREI65% (ZZT——F:165%)%
25%(=F——4%F : 25%)5tH -

FRRGE M BRRKRERBEHIRE
EZFHMT

2013 2012

—E—= —E——4F

HK$°000 HK$'000

F#ET FETT

At 1 January ®n—AH—H (2,078) (1,900)
Exchange differences b H =5 (39) -
Recognised in profit or loss (note 10) BEREERAERMEFE10) 800 (178)
At 31 December R+=—H=+—H (1,317) (2,078)

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities
(prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation
jurisdiction) during the year is as follows:

FR-RERAEERBEGER —HIEAF]
ERER NI ERAT) 2 B BINT

Accelerated tax
depreciation

IEEB IR E

HK$000

FHET

At 1 January 2012 R-ZTE——F—H—H 709

Recognised in profit or loss EREmERNER (145)
At 31 December 2012 and 1 January 2013 JAN—S F+—A=+—HK

—E—=%—HA—H 564

Recognised in profit or loss ERERRAER (481)

At 31 December 2013

R-ZZE—=%+=ZHA=+—H 83
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At 1 January 2012
Recognised in profit or loss

At 31 December 2012 and
1 January 2013

Exchange differences

Recognised in profit or loss

At 31 December 2013

ERBERRARER

R-ZB—=%+=-B=+—H

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in accordance with HKAS
12 Income taxes issued by the HKICPA. The amounts
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

position are as follows:

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities

Net deferred tax assets recognised
in the consolidated statement

of financial position

ERERIREE
EXERIARE

ZFT A= HIEFE

Tax losses
BIEEE
HK$’000

TR
(2,609)

1,151

(1,458)

1,281

(177)

Provisions

BfE
HK$°000
TExT

(1,184)

(1,184)
(39)

(1,223)

Total
B
HK$'000
FET

(2,609)
(33)

(2,642)
(39)
1,281

(1,400)

ERAMBHRRARME - ETELEHIEE
ENBBERET BSOS BEMZ

BHERNFEEMBIREKRZ
EENIREEFR

BEGEERFE125 TS T LA - £
GREPTERRRERZ BT ¢

2013 2012

—E-=F —E——4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FETT

(1,400) (2,642)

83 564

(1,317) (2,078)
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At 31 December 2013, temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of subsidiaries amounted
to HK$6,807,000 (2012: HK$12,215,000). Deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised in respect of the
tax that would be payable on the distribution of these
retained profits as the company controls the dividend
policy of these subsidiaries and it has been determined
that it is probable that these profits will not be
distributed in the foreseeable future.

At 31 December 2013, the Group had unused tax losses
of approximately HK$66,904,000 (2012: HK$70,242,000)
to carry forward against future taxable income. A
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
approximately HK$1,073,000 (2012: HK$8,836,000) of
such losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of the remaining losses of approximately
HK$65,831,000 (2012: HK$61,406,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.

These tax losses do not expire under current legislation
except losses of approximately HK$17,112,000 (2012:
HK$10,712,000) which will expire as follows:

Year of expiry: TEmEE -
2013 —E—=F
2014 —E—E
2015 —E—RF
2016 ZE-RF
2017 —E—tF
2018 —E-N\F

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. The carrying amount of the
amounts due approximates its fair value.

B =l =

R-T—=F+_-"A=+—H WBAF
R IR 5 | 2 B 7 %8 46,807,000 7T
—E— "4 12,215,000/ 7T ) © ANRQ A
WARFE D IRZ SR B m I m A 2 B e
RIELERBEEE - YRR R FIEHZEN
BATRZIREEE  BRERA R ZARKEK
ZERMRATETSEDIK ©

R-E—=%F+-A=+—H £KE£EBH
7 B 3 B T8 /5 18 4966,904,000/8 TT( = =
— 4 170,242,000/ 7T ) A = I K
RBIBERA - BERIBEEDREBEZRSE
18 7 2 #91,073,0008 T( — & — — 4 :
8,836,000/ 7T ) © F AN AT & K AR 7
SRR B L A 4 ot R 645 5 18 4965,831,000
BL(ZZF— 4 : 61,406,000/ 7T ) FER
EERIEEE ©

hWERBBEBRERE LT ERER
MEETHB 4917,112,0008 o( — & — —4F -
10,712,00058 7T ) #&1B 45 T~ 51| BAfE fEm -

2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
- 715

834 1,386

842 1,848
2,507 4,102
3,057 2,661
9,872 -
17,112 10,712

4H¥

ERASERAR  REYARERE
ZEFRZRHERE A BERS -

=
E

=

o
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Authorised: AT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each FREBIET EBR
At 1 January and 31 December R=A—Bk
+-F=t+-E
Issued and fully paid: BETRER
At 1 January ®—A—H

Issue of shares upon placement of shares REERMELTRG

At 31 December Wt+-—A=1t-8

The holder of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.
All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the
Company’s residual assets.

On 18 March 2013, the Company entered into a
placing agreement with the placing agent in respect
of the placing of up to a maximum of 203,000,000
new shares at a placing price of HK$0.34 per share
to raise additional general working capital for future
business development. On 3 April 2013, the placing was
completed and 173,410,000 new shares were placed
by the placing agent to not less than six independent
placees at a placing price of HK$0.34 per share resulting
in raising proceeds, before expenses, of approximately
HK$58,959,000. The related transaction costs amounting
to HK$736,000 have been recorded in the share
premium account. The net proceeds of this placing of
approximately HK$58,223,000 were used for general
working capital of the Group. The Group’s outstanding
issued shares were 1,188,460,000 shares after the
placing of new shares of 173,410,000 as at 31 December
2013.

2013 2012
“E-=F “2——F

Number Number
of shares HK$'000 of shares HK$'000
RAEE TR B TEL
5,000,000,000 500,000 5,000,000,000 500,000
1,015,050,000 101,505 1,015,050,000 101,505
173,410,000 17,341 - -
1,188,460,000 118,846 1,015,050,000 101,505

BEBRFBEABRUBRTEEIR S -
BERRALAEZ EREBBRBEMNE—
E-MEEARHARBZRHBEETSE
RIS HAL

RZZE—=F=A+/\H AAFHEE
EREBTLE S HE - RER0.34B T
2 g & (& fid & & %203,000,0000% 7 f% -
WEARRERBERESHEIIN —KE
BES BHEN_ZT—Z=ZFNA=-H®
o RREREBUASR0MEB T ZREER
173,410,000 TR L& T N D RSB B
SAEAREA - BEEFTSWRA(FIBR B R AT £
458,959,000/ JT ° 736,000/ T &) 18 8
RGMABEAR D RERA o Z B SAT
155F W A #)558,223,00058 7T © AEAR
EEr—REBEES - BE_T——F+
ZA=+—8"  Ri2E173,410,0000% ¥
f&g - AEEBETRM A1,188,460,000
f% °



(i)

(ii)

(iii)
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Share premium

The share premium represents the
difference between nominal value of the
shares issued by the Group and the amount
of the consideration. The application of
the share premium account is governed by
section 40 of the Bermuda Companies Act.

Investment revaluation reserve

Investment revaluation reserve results
from the changes in fair value of available-
for-sale financial assets. The reserve
is derecognised and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies in
notes 2.9 (iii).

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements that
have functional currency other than HKS$.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in note
2.4,

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

DB AN LB ATEITR
MezAEEARESE LA
ZHoBRMaBERZERS
BAREDNTEFAIOKREE

REEMHE

REEMRFEREEATHEE
TREEANEEZES -
% It AR 1% P R 2.9 BT st
B ERRBEERRE
# -

SNE

SMNERBHERRBREEINE
EERIFBTZHBERERM
EEZBINEEZR  Zi#
AR IR M sE2.4FT E & 5K
RERIE ©
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The payment of future dividends will be
determined by the Group’s owners. The payment
of the dividends will depend upon the future
earnings, capital requirement, financial conditions
and general business conditions of the Group.

As of 31 December 2013 and 2012, there was no
reserve available for distribution to the owners of

— = e e =

AERBEZ XN EAREEEES AR
E o BEZXNHBURRALE R

2B EAEL -

BEgLxiin -

BE-T—

=FR-F

B AR

——F+=

the Group.

At 1 January 2012
Loss for the year

At 31 December 2012 and
1 January 2013

Loss for the year

Issue of shares upon share
placement (note 33)

Share issuing costs (note 33)

At 31 December 2013

R-ZE——F—H—H
FREIE

R-ZE——F
+ZA=1+—8xk
—E—=F—A—H

FREE

HRRAD Bl S 21T
B (M93E33)

IR BE1TAAS (PFFES3)

A=+—8  W&EAHSRTFAE
BlEA A fFEE -

Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
B3R E ZitE#E 4z
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000
F#ET F#&T FET
179,556 (215,169) (35,613)
- (5,594) (5,594)
179,556 (220,763) (41,207)
= (38,658) (38,658)
41,618 - 41,618
(736) - (736)
220,438 (259,421) (38,983)
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35.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

Group - as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of land and buildings which
are payable by the Group are as follows:

35. EEHEXRIE

REE-FREEA
REJRPR - ARERBETAIHE 2 LE
HERLHMEEYBEAEZHZERS
FRPA T HIRI XA

2013 2012

—E-=F —E——F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FE T T

Within one year —FR 12,441 6,491
In the second to fifth years E_EZERF 33,139 4,765
45,580 11,256

The Group leases the land and buildings under operating
leases. The leases run for an initial period of one to five
(2012: one to five) years, with an option to renew the
lease and renegotiated the terms at the expiry dates
or at dates as mutually agreed between the Group
and respective landlords. None of the leases include
contingent rentals.

Company

The Company does not have any significant operating
lease commitments as lessee or lessor.

@ ANNUAL REPORT 2013 —=2
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In addition to the transactions/information BT ZERET B IRREMIBHET
disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial WBRERS,/ BRI FRAERIT
statements, during the year, the Group had the EREEE T NSRRI T E
following material transactions with connected AR
and/or related parties:
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——fF
Connected and/or related parties Nature of transactions HK$'000 HK$'000
BESR/SHHS XEHE TR TET
Companies in which directors of the Company
have interests
ARRESRERER DA
- Hangzhou Baidi Jewellery Company Limited* Sales of gold and jewellery 67,518 2,200
("Baidi Jewellery") (notes a, c) products
mMNBBRERRAA([E@kE]) (Mt c) HEESUBEEm
- Shenzhen City Zhong Chuang Union Investment Sales of gold and jewellery 3,573 -
Company Limited* (“Zhong Chuang”) (notes b, c) products
AT eIBEREERAA (A (Mo c) HEBERKEER
- Shenzhen Didi Jewellery Packaging Company Purchase of packaging 1,266 234
Limited* ("Didi Packaging”) (notes a, ¢) materials for the brand
H.K. JEWELRY
AaaseRERAR(HadEak])(Mida ) BEHIARKEREZ
BENK
- Hangzhou Didi Commercial Showcases Company Purchase of showcases for the 3,653 782
Limited* ("Didi Showcases”) (notes a, ¢) brand H.K. JEWELRY
mMaanERAERAR(NadREER ) (Mita ¢c) BEHEARERBZREER
A non-controlling interest of a subsidiary Purchase of complementary 9,580 23,976
hardware and software
—fRB AR R ER BEEGREMAREER
Directors of the Company Sales of property, plant and - 36,900

ARAEZER

equipment

HENZ  BEREE
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Notes:

Sales

Baidi Jewellery, Didi Packaging and Didi
Showcases are owned as to 90%, 65%
and 80% respectively by Hangzhou Didi
Investment Joint Stock Company Limited*
(N 23 32 & B 5 BBR A F)), which in turn
is owned as to 10% and 90% by Mr. Lin Di
and his father, respectively.

Zhong Chuang is owned as to 81% by the
brother of Ms. Li Xia.

The above related party transactions
also constitute continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 20 of
the GEM Listing Rules. The disclosures
required by Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules are provided in the Directors’ Report.

to or purchases from the connected and/

or related parties stated above were conducted
in the Group’'s normal course of business and at
mutually agreed prices and terms.

The English names of the PRC companies are
translation of their respective Chinese names
included for information only and are not their
official names.

GER

— = e T

BMRE - e R Kl
B A DRI AN EERE R
MBRAFFRBIOY% * 65%
T 80% RS + T/ 2 3 #%
B AR QR AMEEL
RHEXDRIFE10%K%90%
RS o

FEREEL T ZRAEE
81 %z ©

B R B IEK S E
BERXZH(EERBIERLE
MRAE=ZTE) - BIFER
ERAEFTERT 2R
BEERNEEeHE -

B ERBES KR T ETZ
BEEORAEEAEEBBREDR
EBH R B RIFTETT -

ZEPERRZAXERWDE
EEHERXERE EH2E
WIHIEXEHE -
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36. CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY 36. EFRBEBRAEZE S &)
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

36.1 Connected and related party transactions 361 BEARRBELIRS (&)
(Continued)
In addition to the transactions/information bR T SR e M BmER AP
disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated RERS5 AR ¢W$%.£ﬁi
financial statements, during the year, the Group RETT B 2 EAREER
had the following material outstanding balances REERIAT e

with connected and/or related parties.

2013 2012
—E—=F —E—-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#& T FHETT
Non-controlling interests of —FEIFfY B A B) 2 FEIRAR
a subsidiary HEam
Trade receivables FEWE SRR - 3,808
Trade payables B E SR (1,090) -
Companies controlled by EE? 5% P8 3R FIT 42 1) Y
controlling shareholders NE]
Trade receivables JEWE SRR 1,197 -
Other payables H A S FRIB (3,428) -
A company controlled by a BB ARZ—%
non-controlling shareholder of a QHWHX%%}EWQ%IJE’\]
subsidiary NGT
Borrowings BE (52,324) (111,374)
e— T =FFH —=
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Key management of the Group are members of
the board of directors, as well as certain senior
management personnel. Included in staff costs are
key management personnel remuneration which
includes the following expenses:

Short-term employee benefits R R B e
Salaries and other benefits e LEHMET
Contribution to defined EREH TS

contribution plan

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
deregistered its 65% direct interest in 1t & & 3§ R 8@
BEAERAGR ("EHEIRA"). The deregistration of HE
#R 8 were completed in 2013. FE &R B did not have
significant contribution to the Group's revenue, loss and
cash flow for the period.

Net assets of 75 %5 iR 3 at the date of deregistration
was approximately HK$10,444,000, representing bank
balances and cash. Return of capital of HK$6,236,000
and HK$3,655,000 were made to the Group and the
non-controlling interests respectively. The respective
exchange translation reserve of HK$553,000 was
transferred to profit or loss of the Group. There was
no gain or loss on deregistration of a subsidiary is
recognised by the Group during the year.

AEEEEEEABREFTENE
RETEMRERAE - BEINAR
EEIZEBEABME  EFEET

I
2013 2012
—E-=fF —T——fF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
7,416 7,592
45 82
7,461 7,674

RBE-T-—=Ft+-A=t+—HLHFE
W AREFEHEERIE RERRBREE
RAR([EBIERR]) Z65%E ZE ° &
BHRBR T =FANTHEHE - RAH
B SHRBYAEE 2 W - BEMEA

EEBEERAHEBHZEEFAENA
10,444,000 7T - EARITEREIRE -
& E K FEE IR 5 Bl EiR 26,236,000
7 7T 123,655,000 T E & © B X 1E
553,000 BB EAREE 2 BEKRF o
RER - REBWREFHE —BHBLF
RSB 1R o



for the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z —E— =1+ - HA=+—HIFFE

At the end of the reporting period, the Company
had given corporate guarantee to a third party and a
subsidiary of the Company in respect of all monies owed
by and/or the obligations and liabilities of the subsidiary
due to a third party under a service contract to the
extent of HK$600,000 (2012: HK$600,000). At the end
of the reporting period, no provision for the Group's and
the Company's obligation under the guarantee contract
has been made as there was no amounts due by the
subsidiary to the third party at the end of the reporting
period and the directors considered that it was not
probable that the service obligations by the subsidiary
would not be met. The fair value of the guarantee is
immaterial.

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations
and in its investment activities. The financial risks include
market risk (including foreign currency risk, interest rate
risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its financial risk and takes actions to mitigate such risk.
The Group adopts conservative strategies on its risk
management and seeks to limit the Group’s exposure to
these risks to a minimum. The board of directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks.

There has been no change to the type of the Group's
and the Company's exposure in respect of financial
instruments or the manner in which it manages and
measures the risks.

REBFHRHEKR AQFEHET— BB
DRABE—DREAHOMENT—BE
ZHZEBERRE/KEXTRERE @
REBE=ZARZHBARBESELRA
600,000/ 70( ==& — =4 : 600,000/ 7T)
ZRRER - RERPEX  ARZMBEA
ARERPRTERBERZEZE=T
BEZBERAZMB AR AL ELETT
EBEREEMT ML ERANERRAQF]
BIEZDEREDHZETIET RS - 2k
RZARBEILTERK o

AEBAERBEEHBERET RRERE
BB E AR T AmAENHRRE - 8
BRREEM SRR (EREINERR - FX
R b B ERER) - FERERRE
[z o

AEEREGRBERARTMEEEMHR
% WERETTERIEEHAR - AEEE
[ E IR 77 E R AR AR ST RS - WS
BARBEAZ 2 FRARBRERE - EF
gl kRAEEESEBRAR IR

AEERARFRMSERERTACBEAR
HEBRFERRARZ A EEE) -
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 39. MERBREEREMTALAR

AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

39.1 Categories of financial assets and
liabilities

The carrying amounts presented in the statement

BE#

39.1 eRMEEREBEZEH

BB R B 251 Z BREE S B A

of financial position relate to the following THzeMEENTRAE
categories of financial assets and financial
liabilities:
Company
N
2012 2013 2012
—E-C-F —E-=E “E-——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET FAT TET
Financial assets SREE
Available-for-sale financial assets RHESREE
- Unlisted private equity fund, —FETRARE
at fair value % BOAEE - 2,543 = -
Financial assets at fair value BARBEFABER
through profit or loss LEREE
- Listed equity securities held ~BEEEZ W
for trading BAES 26,602 5,151 - -
Loans and receivables B LR
- Finance lease receivables -BEHERWTE - 187 = -
- Amounts due from customers -EREEAH
for contract work T#EZE 41,394 53,120 - -
- Trade receivables —~EWE SRS 35,890 138,608 = -
- Other receivables and deposits - EpERFERES 18,958 3,285 - -
- Amounts due from subsidiaries ~ UM B AR = - 144,414 118,670
- Bank balances and cash -BAERERE 71,355 87,763 543 5,528
194,199 290,657 144,957 125,198

@& ANNUAL REPORT 2013 —=2
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it

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 39. HHEREEERESMTAL
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL BE %)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

39.1 ERMEEREBB2ERE)

39.1 Categories of financial assets and

liabilities (Continued)

Group Company
b | N
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=% —F-f —E-=F —T-Cf
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn FAT TET TAT
Financial liabilities SREE
Financial liabilities measured RBHERASE Y
at amortised cost tRARE
- Trade payables ~-ENHE SRR 50,429 73,127 - -
- Other payables and ~EENFER
accrued charges BRERA 30,326 21,453 566 377
- Amounts due to subsidiaries - ENHBLRZA - - 64,753 64,753
- Amounts due to directors -ENEZHE 2,540 1,648 - -
- Borrowings —&E 55,943 111,374 - -
139,238 207,602 65,319 65,130
39.2 Foreign currency risk 39.2 SMNERME

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the
fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. It is the Group's policy
for each operating entity to operate in local
currencies as far as possible to minimise currency
risks. The Group’'s exposure to foreign currency
risk arise from its overseas sales and purchases,
which are primarily denominated in US$, RMB,
S$ and Japanese Yen (“JPY"). These are not the
functional currencies of certain Group entities to
which these transactions relate.

T =G5
137

-2

SINBEE [ i 5 A EE =< 2 B T G 2N A
TRAZAARBEXKERKRRERE
IR B 2 Ek - AEEHEEL
EERBROZERAUNEHEEL
g BERREINERR - AEE
A ZINERBRIRAEEEIAX
T ARE stk RE( A
B DEHEZBINEE RIRE - 1tF
EEWFFPRUERFGZETEE

BERZEEE -
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The following table details of the Group's
exposure at the end of the reporting period to
foreign currency risk arising from recognised
assets and liabilities denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the entity to
which they relate are shown below:

At 31 December 2013

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Amounts due from customers
for contract work
Trade receivables
Bank balances and cash
Other payables and
accrued charges
Borrowings

Overall net exposure

At 31 December 2012

Available-for-sale
financial assets

Finance lease receivables

Trade receivables

Bank balances and cash

Overall net exposure
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The Group is mainly exposed to the effects of
fluctuation in RMB, S$ and JPY.

us$
e
HK$000
TER

17,664

119
4,289
17,639

39,711

2,543
187
8,156
22,623

33,609
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TR R 2 B R AR B E LR
W B B W DA 2 S A E 2
ERRAERAETAE2INER
BREES -
RMB S$ JPY
AR%  FiH AE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
F#L  FER  FER
6,696 162 413
(28) - -
(3,619) - -
3,049 162 413
- 89 -
3,311 70 515
3,311 159 515
AEBEERE AR BT
RAEZEDHE -
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The HK$ is pegged to US$ and the amounts
denominated in US$ is considered to be
insignificant.

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of
the Group’s (loss)/profit after income tax for the
year and equity in regards to an appreciation/
depreciation in HK$ against RMB, S$ and JPY.
These rates are the rates used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s best
assessment of the possible change in foreign
exchange rates.

Increase/
(Decrease)
in foreign

exchange

rate

ExLtH

(TEE)

2013 —=—=
RMB AR

S$ BT

JPY HE

2012 —E——f
RMB AR

S$ b T

JPY HE

Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary during
the year depending on the volume of overseas
transactions. Nevertheless, the analysis above is
considered to be representative of the Group's
exposure to foreign currency risk.

%o
%

+3%
-3%
+3%
-3%
+5%
-5%

+3%
-3%
+3%
-3%
+5%
-5%
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Effect on (loss)/ Effect on
profit after component
income tax of equity

RSB % R
(BR),wRzse EZ
HK$°000 HK$°000

TF# T THET

(91) 91

91 (91)

(5) 5

5 (5)

(21) 21

21 (21)

99 99

(99) (99)

5 5

(5) (5)

26 26

(26) (26)
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Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in the market
interest rates. The Group's interest rate risk arises
primarily from bank balances, amount due from
available-for-sale financial assets and finance
lease receivables. Borrowings bearing variable
rates and fixed rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate
risk respectively. All of the Group's finance lease
receivables and amount due from available-for-sale
financial assets are at fixed rates. The exposure
to interest rates for the Group's short-term bank
deposits is considered immaterial. The Group
therefore does not have significant exposure to
interest rate risk at the end of the reporting period
nor in comparative periods.

The Company has no exposure to interest rate
risk at the end of the reporting period nor in
comparative periods.

Other price risk relates to the risk that the fair
values of equity securities will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices (other than changes
in interest rates and foreign exchange rates). The
Group is exposed to change in market prices
in respect of its investments in listed equity
securities classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss.

To manage its market price risk arising from
these investments, the Group diversifies its
portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is done
in accordance with the decision made by the
board of directors. All the investments are equity
securities listed in The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited and are valued at quoted market
prices at the end of the reporting period.
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The sensitivity analysis below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity price
risks at the end of the reporting period.

Market price of the listed
equity securities

Market price of the listed
equity securities

The assumed volatility of listed equity securities
represent management’'s assessment of a

Increase/
(Decrease)
in price of

listed equity
securities
ETRAES 2
ERFiE
(BK1E)

%

%

ETERAESRZ

M5 E +10

Increase/
(Decrease)
in price of

listed equity
securities
R AEESE
BIgFIE,
(K1)

%

%

EREAERZ

MmIGER +10

-10

ZFEf - A=+—HItFE

THBREDH - RIE 2w KK

AERERMET

2013

—= =

Effect on
loss after
income tax

MBRFAEHERY
BRz2E
HK$'000
FET

(2,660)

2,660

2012
—E——F

Effect on
profit after
income tax

FRRPTIS TR 8
w2 8
HK$ 000
TETT

515

(515)

reasonably possible change in these security BEEAE o
prices over the next twelve month period.

Effect on
component
of equity

HRE
hviged 7
HK$'000
FET

2,660

(2,660)

Effect on
component
of equity

¥
a2
HK$’ 000
TAT

515

(515)
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EEFEBRIOAR T ZEABR SR



for the year ended 31 December 2013 2 —FE—=F+—-A=+—HIFFZ

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge
its obligation under the terms of the financial
instrument and cause a financial loss to the Group.
The Group's exposure to credit risk mainly arises
from granting credit to customers in the ordinary
course of its operations and its investing activities.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
on recognised financial assets is limited to the
carrying amount at the end of the reporting period
as summarised in note 39.1.

In respect of credit risk associated with trade and
other receivables, management closely monitors
all outstanding debts and reviews the collectability
of trade receivables periodically. As at the end of
the reporting period, the credit risk is considered
negligible as the counterparties are reputable
banks and multi-national companies with high
quality external credit ratings.

The Group adopts conservative investment
strategies with management monitoring the
investment portfolio. Usually investments are
in liguid securities quoted on recognised stock
exchanges, except where entered into for long
term strategic purposes.

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group
will not be able to meet its obligations associated
with its financial liabilities. The Group is exposed
to liquidity risk in respect of settlement of trade
payables and its financing obligations, and also in
respect of its cash flow management. The Group's
objective is to maintain an appropriate level of
liguid assets and committed lines of funding to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.
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The Group’s prudent policy is to regularly monitor
its current and expected liquidity requirements,
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash and cash equivalents to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short term.

When the creditor has a choice of when the
liability is settled, the liability is included on the
basis of the earliest date on when the Group
can be required to pay. Where the settlement
of the liability is in instalments, each instalment
is allocated to the earliest period in which the
Group is committed to pay. At 31 December
2013 and 2012, the Group’s contractual maturity
for its financial liabilities are within one year
or on demand. The carrying amounts of its
financial liabilities approximate their contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Company's
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities
are within one year or on demand. The carrying
amounts of its financial liabilities approximate their
contractual undiscounted cash flows.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 39. H¥ERBEER&BMIALR
RE

AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

39.7 Fair value measurements recognised
in the statement of financial position -
Group

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities at the measurement
date

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available.

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 39.
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

39.7 Fair value measurements recognised

in the statement of financial position -
Group (Continued)
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair 77

value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The financial assets and liabilities measured at fair

5TE -

39.7 RN RER
AEEE)

HERBREEREMTALR
B{E#

NREE

value in the statement of financial position are MEERAR iﬁiﬁﬂ Z’Rﬁﬂﬁ
grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows: BEX:
Recurring fair value measurements REMZAAEEET
2013
—E—-=fF
Level 1 Level 2 Total
E—ER EEBIR &5t
Notes HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
B3 FET FExT FET
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair AR EEFA
value through profit BarZ
or loss TREE (b) 26,602 - 26,602
— T g —
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 39.

AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

39.7 Fair value measurements recognised

in the statement of financial position -

Group (Continued)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair

value (Continued)

Recurring fair value measurements (Continued)

MERBREEREMTALR

RE®)

39.7

B # AR R R R
RTE-AKE(E)

D REE

REMZANEEFTERE)

2012
—E——F
Level 1 Level 2 Total
EF—EX FEIR =X
Notes HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
B &E T T FHIT
Assets BE
Available-for-sale AtEHESREE
financial assets
- Unlisted private —FEEWRLA
equity fund REHES (a) - 2,543 2,543
Financial assets at fair AR BESTA
value through profit BHERZ
or loss THREE (b) 5,151 - 5,151
Net fair values AR BEFRE 5,151 2,543 7,694
(a)  Unlisted private equity fund (a) FELEARAREES

The fair value of unlisted private equity fund
as at 31 December 2012 is determined
by reference to the net asset value of the
underlying investment in the equity fund.
Impairment loss of HK$2,543,000 (2012:
HK$123,000) was provided during the year
because the directors are of the opinion
that the amount is uncollectable as the
fund has been put into liquidation in late

2013.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 39. MERBREEREMTALR

40.

AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

39.7 Fair value measurements recognised
in the statement of financial position -

Group (Continued)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (Continued)

Recurring fair value measurements (Continued)
(b) Listed equity securities

The listed equity securities are denominated
in HK$. Fair values have been determined
by reference to their quoted bid prices at
the end of the reporting period.

During the years ended 31 December 2013 and
2012, there were no transfers between level 1
and level 2. The Group's policy is to recognise
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as
at the end of the reporting period in which they
occur.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group's capital management objectives are to
ensure the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
and to provide an adequate return for shareholders by
pricing goods and services commensurately with the
level of risks.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light
of changes in economic conditions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s financial instruments carried at cost or
amortised cost are not materially different from their fair
values as at 31 December 2013 and 2012.
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Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors
its capital structure using gearing ratio which is net
debt divided by total equity. For this purpose, the Group
defines net debt as debt, which comprises long-term and
short-term borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents.
Total equity comprises equity attributable to owners of
the Company and non-controlling interests stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position. During 2013,
the Group's strategy remains unchanged from 2012,
which is to maintain the gearing ratio of not more than
20% in order to support its business. The gearing ratio at
31 December 2013 and 2012 were as follows:

(EERE R

B A= i

B RITIE R R IR

Total borrowings — Borrowings
Less: bank balances and cash

Net (assets)/debt F(EE)/AafE
Total equity et B RE
Gearing ratio i x

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to
conform with current year’s presentation.

REZFED - AEEIRFE &R ARE
BEGEEEL R NHETHEE AR
%o AEBKFaGErERAG(RERED
REBEE)INRA S RRESEEY - RE
BEERERA IR R R TR 2 AN D Bl
BAFEMIE R IR SAERK - —F—
—FHE AEEZRIKRE T — —FF
B DB ELEERETSR20%H 7K
FoUTREEZER RZE—=FK
—EB-—F+-A=+—8 " aFEkEMm
—F :

2013 2012
—E-=fF —EF——-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
55,943 111,374
(71,355) (87,763)
(15,412) 23,611
192,267 151,958
= 16%
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